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2024 30

(Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited)

KY1-1104
309GT
(P.0. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands)

03 6775 1764

(Nikko AM Offshore Funds — DoubleLine Total Return Fund)

10 1,611
10 1,611
1,000
1,000
2024 28 UFJ
161.07
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https://www.sc.mufg.jp/products/trust/index.html

Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited
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Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited
2017 27
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Limited
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Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
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DoubleLine Capital LP
)
2003 26
)
) 2024
2024 480,000 7,731
161.07 480,000 161.07
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)
2024
EC2V 5DE 480,000 100.00
40
Nikko AM Global Holdings (40 Basinghall Street, London EC2V 5DE,
Limited United Kingdom)
(
1925
50
150

(
(

a

2003 11 17
CIMA
CIMA CIMA
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TOPIX
JPX JPX
MSCI-KOKUSAI
MSCI Inc.
MSCI Inc.
MSCI
MSCI Inc.
MSCI Inc.
NOMURA-BPI
FTSE
FTSE Fixed Income LLC FTSE Fixed Income LLC
FTSE Fixed Income LLC
JP GBI-EM

J.P. Morgan Securities LLC
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC
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3.3
0.015
15,000
0.68
0.03 0.25
0.22 0.40
0.35
0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
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0.05 50,000
0.02
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2024

2024

0.60
140,000
FATCA/CRS 1,500
29
15,043
384,799
73,310
11,318
339,528
a b
X
X
XV
180,000
29 202,428
2024 30
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2024
48,661,949.28 91.96
2,736,932.41 5.17
505,320.00 0.95
51,904,201.69 98.09
1,011,348.94 1.91
52,915,550.63
100.00
8,523,107,740
2024
FHR 4326 BZ 3% 2044
3 4,068,326.25| 99.17| 4,034,608.15| 88.45| 3,598,362.97 6.80
04/15/44 15
US TREAS BDS 1.375% 2050
1.375 5,800,000.00| 49.58| 2,875,891.36| 51.57| 2,990,851.55| 5.65
08/15/50 15
US TREAS BDS 1.625% 2050
1.625 5,100,000.00| 53.07| 2,706,413.19| 55.16| 2,813,367.16| 5.32
11/15/50 11 15
UMBS P#SD7556 3% 2052
3 2,128,716.58 | 91.71| 1,952,227.46| 86.30| 1,837,100.18| 3.47
08/01/52
VISIO 2019-2 M1 V/R 2054
3.26 1,575,000.00 | 100.00 | 1,574,942.12| 87.71| 1,381,431.08| 2.61
11/25/54 11 25
FNR 2021-33 AZ 2.5% 2051
2.5 2,430,102.33| 64.83| 1,575,383.00| 55.12| 1,339,482.37 2.53
06/25/51 25
UMBS P#SD8286 4% 2053
4 1,402,221.42| 96.67| 1,355,551.08| 91.68| 1,285,597.25| 2.43
01/01/53
UMBS P#MA4600 3.5% 2052
3.5 1,443,613.31| 93.71| 1,352,833.47| 88.74| 1,281,106.57 2.42
05/01/52
UMBS P#RA7673 4.5% 2052
4.5 1,348,776.00| 96.12| 1,296,428.98| 94.59| 1,275,749.96| 2.41
07/01/52
UMBS P#SD1460 3% 2052
10 3 1,382,180.43| 92.32| 1,276,078.99| 86.47| 1,195,155.87 2.26
05/01/52
FNR 2019-74 KT 2.5% 2049
11 2.5 1,500,000.00| 96.95| 1,454,238.73| 77.21| 1,158,130.05| 2.19
12/25/49 12 25
UMBS P#BS7451 5.05% 2030
12 5.05 1,146,000.00 | 100.07| 1,146,826.48| 99.90| 1,144,902.88| 2.16
01/01/30
WMALT 2005-3 1C 5.5% 2035
13 5.5 1,215,468.20 | 86.94| 1,056,674.88| 84.88| 1,031,668.02 1.95
05/25/35 25
COLT 2023-2 A1 S/UP 2068
14 6.596 952,047.59 | 100.00 952,034.74 1 100.50 956,820.01 1.81
07/25/68 25
GNR 2013-131 PY 3.5% 2043
15 3.5 1,000,000.00| 94.41 944,108.35| 92.14 921,356.00 1.74
09/16/43 16
TPMT 2022-1 Al V/R 2062
16 3.75 941,648.77| 94.98 894,390.02| 93.03 876,040.43 1.66
07/25/62 25
EFMT 2022-4 A3 V/R 2067
17 5.9 856,221.33| 97.39 833,903.51| 98.89 846,687.65 1.60
09/25/67 25
OBX 2023-NQM1 A1l V/R 2062
18 6.12 801,905.67 | 100.00 801,895.92| 99.95 801,473.92 1.51
11/25/62 11 25
VERUS 2023-INV1 V/R 2068
19 5.999 789,678.45| 100.00 789,669.57 | 99.46 785,440.72 1.48
02/25/68 25
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FNR 2020-56 AQ 2% 2050

20 2 1,000,000.00| 72.82 728,182.13| 76.16 761,616.10 1.44
08/25/50 25
UMBS P#RA7773 4% 2052

21 4 812,042.43| 96.44 783,130.28| 91.83 745,684.39 1.41
08/01/52
UMBS P#SD7564 5% 2053

22 5 715,486.04 | 97.19 695,411.46| 98.04 701,429.57 1.33
06/01/53
UMBS P#AS6503 3.5% 2046

23 3.5 725,053.721102.13 740,471.61| 91.67 664,627.92 1.26
01/01/46
VERUS 2023-1 Al V/R 2067

24 5.85 556,093.29 | 100.00 556,091.42| 99.32 552,304.85 1.04
12/25/2067 12 25
CARVL 2024-1A A V/R 2037

25 7.0047 500,000.00 | 100.00 500,000.00 | 101.06 505,320.00 0.95
04/20/37 20
AFFRM 2023-A A 6.61% 2028

26 6.61 500,000.00 | 100.00 500,000.00 | 100.37 501,848.20 0.95
01/18/28 18
BRDGS 2024-1A A V/R 2037

27 6.9238 500,000.00 | 100.22 501,088.82 | 100.36 501,782.50 0.95
04/20/37 20
MAGNE 2024-40A A V/R 2037

28 6.7819 500,000.00 | 100.00 500,000.00 | 100.07 500,343.50 0.95
07/15/37 15
JTWN 2021-16A A V/R 2034

29 6.7852 500,000.00| 97.64 488,181.36 | 100.02 500,118.50 0.95
07/25/34 25
MP22 2021-2A A V/R 2034

30 6.7852 500,000.00 | 98.40 491,978.28 | 100.00 500,000.00 0.94
07/25/34 25
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2023 2024

2018 28 8,686,382.00 1,399,115,549 9.87 1,590
2019 28 2,762,565.00 444,966,345 9.87 1,590
2020 29 2,527,093.00 407,038,870 10.40 1,675
2021 28 3,912,075.00 630,117,920 10.06 1,620
2022 28 2,334,065.00 375,947,850 9.64 1,553
2023 28 1,183,859.00 190,684,169 8.27 1,332
2024 29 937,412.00 150,988,951 8.18 1,318
2023 938,519.77 151,167,379 8.22 1,324
931,196.00 149,987,740 8.15 1,313

903,692.69 145,557,782 7.91 1,274

10 885,142.55 142,569,911 7.74 1,247

11 919,739.39 148,142,424 8.04 1,295

12 953,595.43 153,595,616 8.33 1,342

2024 950,096.46 153,032,037 8.30 1,337
937,412.00 150,988,951 8.18 1,318

944,767.86 152,173,759 8.24 1,327

918,770.92 147,986,432 8.01 1,290

931,075.02 149,968,253 8.11 1,306

941,939.00 151,718,115 8.20 1,321
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2018 28 30,965,492.00 4,987,611,796 9.93 1,599
2019 28 23,351,368.00 3,761,204,844 10.05 1,619
2020 29 39,075,715.00 6,293,925,415 10.73 1,728
2021 28 19,700,876.00 3,173,220,097 10.50 1,691
2022 28 11,429,343.00 1,840,924,277 10.19 1,641
2023 28 8,746,633.00 1,408,820,177 8.87 1,429
2024 29 15,872,910.00 2,556,649,614 8.92 1,437
2023 15,086,170.50 2,429,929,482 8.87 1,429
14,897,899.00 2,399,604,592 8.82 1,421

14,274 ,963.66 2,299,268,397 8.51 1,371

10 13,951,751.30 2,247,208,582 8.36 1,347

11 14,516,171.56 2,338,119,753 8.70 1,401

12 15,075,286.94 2,428,176,467 9.04 1,456

2024 15,396,449.52 2,479,906,124 9.02 1,453
15,872,910.00 2,556,649,614 8.92 1,437

15,923,966.12 2,564,873,223 8.95 1,442

15,516,557.38 2,499,251,897 8.72 1,405

15,754,562.25 2,537,587,342 8.85 1,425

16,050,162.01 2,585,199,595 8.97 1,445
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2018 28 1,319,826,597 9,747
2019 28 938,086,516 9,560
2020 29 740,002,439 9,878
2021 28 468,996,501 9,499
2022 28 533,542,314 9,111
2023 28 406,964,652 7,594
2024 29 310,300,933 7,083
2023 347,271,140 7,381
342,425,965 7,277

330,821,218 7,029

10 322,257,308 6,846

11 332,919,630 7,071

12 343,099,693 7,286

2024 316,191,938 7,218
310,300,933 7,083

215,867,570 7,096

193,636,008 6,861

176,352,307 6,906

177,415,907 6,948
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2018 28 4,649,612,061 9,785
2019 28 4,111,604,311 9,658
2020 29 4,110,797,927 10,045
2021 28 3,626,665,845 9,746
2022 28 3,212,368,614 9,437
2023 28 5,714,622,038 7,965
2024 29 5,891,474,578 7,550
2023 5,732,504,698 7,781
5,997,267,944 7,689

5,774,833,653 7,406

10 5,635,408,726 7,230

11 5,834,638,552 7,485

12 6,023,844,194 7,730

2024 5,991,894,162 7,676
5,891,474,578 7,550

5,686,031,950 7,544

5,503,855,512 7,315

5,549,775,945 7,388

5,601,230,198 7,456

43/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.12 19 0.06 10
0.24 39 0.12 19
0.24 39 0.12 19
0.24 39 0.12 19
0.24 39 0.12 19
0.24 39 0.12 19
0.24 39 0.12 19
2024 0.02 3 0.06 10
0.02 3 0 0
0.02 3 0 0
0.02 3 0 0
1.64 264 0.84 135
60 40

120 80

120 80

120 80

120 80

120 80

120 80

2024 10 40
10 0

10 0

10 0

820 560
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-0.10 -0.10 -1.93 -1.75
2.43 2.42 -0.69 -0.48
7.80 7.96 4.58 4.84
-0.96 -1.03 -2.62 -2.18
-1.79 -1.81 -2.82 -2.35
-11.72 -11.78 -15.33 -14.75
1.81 1.92 -5.15 -4.21
100x
10.00
10,000
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1,126,302 246,498 879,804
(1,126,302) (246,498) (879,804)
61,776 661,560 280,020
(61,776) (661,560) (280,020)
61,310 98,361 242,969
(61,310) (98,361) (242,969)
211,506 65,521 388,954
(211,506) (65,521) (388,954)
30,822 177,738 242,038
(30,822) (177,738) (242,038)
1,269 100,173 143,134
(1,269) (100,173) (143,134)

720 29,295 114,559
(720) (29,295) (114,559)
3,340,569 222,631 3,117,938
(3,340,569) (222,631) (3,117,938)
134,461 929,636 2,322,763
(134,461) (929, 636) (2,322,763)
2,018,963 698,832 3,642,894
(2,018,963) (698,832) (3.642,894)
292,891 2,059,636 1,876,149
(292,891) (2,059, 636) (1,876,149)
65,867 820,866 1,121,150
(65,867) (820, 866) (1,121,150)

89,563 225,161 985,552
(89,563) (225,161) (985,552)
921,283 127,118 1,779,717
(921,283) (127,118) (1,779,717)
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139,992 4,587 135,405
(139,992) (4,587) (135,405)
13,275 50,556 98,124
(13,275) (50,556) (98,124)
11,138 34,347 74,915
(11,138) (34,347) (74,915)
1,111 26,655 49,371
(1,111) (26,655) (49,371)
17,034 7,844 58,561
(17,034) (7,844) (58,561)

66 5,038 53,589
(66) (5,038) (53,589)
3,331 13,112 43,808

(3.331) (13,112) (43,808)
588,854 113,665 475,189
(588, 854) (113,665) (475,189)
1,246 50,716 425,719
(1,246) (50,716) (425,719)
8,077 24,553 409,243
(8,077) (24,553) (409,243)
2,108 39,246 372,105
(2,108) (39,246) (372,105)
2,526 34,245 340,386
(2,526) (34,245) (340, 386)
382,562 5,513 717,435
(382,562) (5.513) (717,435)
64,850 1,936 780,349
(64,850) (1,936) (780, 349)
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10 0.001 100 0.01
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2024

29

63,410,976

310,300,933
43,808

5,891,474,578
780,349

937,412
114,559

15,872,910
1,779,717

161.07
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57,035,054 9,186,636
1,523,216 245,344
741 119
288,369 46,448
238,091 38,349
59,085,471 9,516,897
599,750 96,602
25,268 4,070
80,822 13,018
56,659 9,126
28,652 4,615
12,432 2,002
10,182 1,640
7,874 1,268
5,596 901
1,921 309
9,663 1,556
838,819 135,109
58,246,652 9,381,788
78,560,433 12,653,729
(20,313,781) (3,271,941)
58,246,652 9,381,788
7,083
7,550
8.18 1,318
8.92 1,437
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3,137,551 505,365
3,137,551 505,365
384,799 61,980
339,528 54,688
129,067 20,789
73,310 11,808
15,043 2,423
11,318 1,823
10,028 1,615
63,333 10,201
1,026,426 165,326
2,111,125 340,039
(1,348,033) (217,128)
(7,440,064) (1,198,371)
(8,788,097) (1,415,499)
266,049 42,853
783,305 126,167
1,049,354 169,019
(7,738,743) (1,246,479)
(5,627,618) (906, 440)




EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 29

2,111,125 340,039
(8,788,097) (1,415,499)

1,049,354 169,019

(5,627,618) (906, 440)

(41,313) (6,654)

(427,792) (68,904)

(27,789) (4,476)

(158,213) (25,483)

(655,107) (105,518)

3,331 193,753 31,208
64,850 3,496,246 563,140
720 5,879 947
921,283 8,127,541 1,309,103
13,112 (694,308) (111,832)
1,936 (102,930) (16,579)
29,295 (245, 483) (39,540)
127,118 (1,122,434) (180,790)
9,658,264 1,555,657

3,375,539 543,698

54,871,113 8,838,090

58,246,652 9,381,788

161.07
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161.07

2024 29

(5,627,618) (906,440)
(59,910,117) (9,649,723)
55,841,512 8,994,392

(27,974) (4,506)
1,348,033 217,128
(266,049) (42,853)
(783,311) (126,168)
6,621 1,066
(21,117) (3,401)
(1,798) (290)
(47,970) @7.727)
717 115
71,183 11,465
30 ®)

656 106

1,230 198
5,352 862
(9,410,680) (1,515,778)
11,828,711 1,905,250
(2,148,742) (346,098)
(655,107) (105,518)
9,024,862 1,453,635
(385,818) (62,144)
1,909,034 307,488
1,523,216 245,344
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2024 29
2024 2024
29 29 2024 29 2024 29
7,594 7,965 8.27 1,332 8.87 1,429
() 211 291 0.31 50 0.33 53
(602) (626) (0.16) (26) (0.16) (26)
(391) (335) 0.15 24 0.17 27
(120) (80) (0.24) (39) (0.12) (19)
7,083 7,550 8.18 1,318 8.92 1,437
(5.18) (4.24) 1.85 1.94
310,301 5,891,474 937 150,923 15,873 2,556,664
2.73 1.79 1.72 1.74
2.89 3.78 3.83 3.76

@

161.07
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2024 29
)
97.9
97.9
59.7
Affirm Asset Securitization Trust 2023-A
Class A
500,000 6.61% due 01/18/28(1) 0.9 503,033
Aligned Data Centers lIssuer LLC Class B
200,000 2.48% due 08/15/46(1) 0.3 177,313
Alternative Loan Trust 2005-4 Class 1A2
499,363 5.50% due 04/25/35 0.6 338,389
Alternative Loan Trust 2007-0A8 Class 1Al
402,558 5.80% due 06/25/47(2) 0.6 325,412
BAMLL Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2019-RLJ Class A
100,000 6.42% due 04/15/36(1).(2) 0.2 99,875
BANK 2017-BNK4 Class XA
788,687 1.34% due 05/15/50(3) 0.0 25,050
BANK 2017-BNK6 Class XA
1,283,134 0.77% due 07/15/60(3) 0.0 24,688
BANK 2018-BNK10 Class XA
1,773,735 0.69% due 02/15/61(3) 0.1 39,602
BANK 2021-BNK35 Class A5
125,000 2.29% due 06/15/64 0.2 103,166
BANK 2021-BNK38 Class A5
110,000 2.52% due 12/15/64 0.2 90,984
BBCMS 2018-TALL Mortgage Trust Class F
100,000 8.75% due 03/15/37(1).(2) 0.1 62,517
BBCMS Mortgage Trust 2020-C8 Class A5
125,000 2.04% due 10/15/53 0.2 102,715
BBCMS Mortgage Trust 2021-C12 Class A5
100,000 2.69% due 11/15/54 0.1 84,650
BBCMS Mortgage Trust 2022-C18 Class XD
1,000,000 2.15% due 12/15/55(1),(3) 0.3 150,242
Bear Stearns ARM Trust 2007-1 Class 2Al
221,185 5.71% due 02/25/47(3) 0.3 182,650
Bear Stearns Asset Backed Securities | Trust
2007-HE6 Class 1Al
48,210 6.69% due 08/25/37(2 0.1 47,151
Benchmark 2019-B13 Mortgage Trust Class A3
159,000 2.70% due 08/15/57 0.2 141,142
Benchmark 2020-B19 Mortgage Trust Class A4
125,000 1.55% due 09/15/53 0.2 102,717
Benchmark 2020-B19 Mortgage Trust Class XA
989,060 1.76% due 09/15/53(3) 0.1 62,359
Benchmark 2020-1G3 Mortgage Trust Class XA
2,506,878 0.73% due 09/15/48(1),(3) 0.1 39,931
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Benchmark 2021-B30 Mortgage Trust Class A5
125,000 2.58% due 11/15/54 0.2 104,040
BMO 2024-5C3 Mortgage Trust Class AS
100,000 6.29% due 02/15/57(3) 0.2 102,829
BX Trust 2019-0C11 Class E
129,000 3.94% due 12/09/41(1).(3) 0.2 109,282
BX Trust 2019-0C11 Class XB
5,138,000 0.18% due 12/09/41(1).(3) 0.1 53,943
Carrington Mortgage Loan Trust Series 2006-
NC4 Class A3
246,306 5.60% due 10/25/36(2) 0.4 238,255
CarvVal CLO IX-C Ltd. Class A
500,000 0.00% due 04/20/37(1).(2) 0.9 500,170
CD 2017-CD4 Mortgage Trust Class XA
1,117,942 1.22% due 05/10/50(3) 0.1 32,264
CHL Mortgage Pass-Through Trust 2006-0A5
Class 2Al1
514,610 5.84% due 04/25/46(2) 0.7 421,837
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2015-GC35
Class XA
1,434,666 0.71% due 11/10/48() 0.0 12,587
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-P7
Class XA
311,624 1.08% due 04/14/50(3) 0.0 8,000
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2020-555
Class E
100,000 3.50% due 12/10/41(1).(3) 0.1 73,732
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2020-555
Class F
100,000 3.50% due 12/10/41(1).(3) 0.1 71,546
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2020-GC46
Class AS
117,000 2.92% due 02/15/53(3) 0.2 100,546
CLNC 2019-FL1 Ltd. Class AS
99,597 6.98% due 08/20/35(1).(2) 0.2 98,805
COLT 2023-1 Mortgage Loan Trust Class Al
425,037 6.05% due 04/25/68(1),(%) 0.7 424,803
COLT 2023-2 Mortgage Loan Trust Class Al
1,022,760 6.60% due 07/25/68(1),(4) 1.8 1,029,148
COMM 2014-CCRE18 Mortgage Trust Class B
100,000 4.46% due 07/15/47(3) 0.2 97,855
COMM 2015-LC21 Mortgage Trust Class XA
1,863,605 0.63% due 07/10/48() 0.0 10,519
CSAIL 2019-C18 Commercial Mortgage Trust
Class XA
1,127,270 1.00% due 12/15/52(3) 0.1 45,252
CSMC 2020-NET Class A
100,606 2.26% due 08/15/37(1) 0.2 93,167
CSMC 2021-B33 Class Al
100,000 3.05% due 10/10/43(1) 0.2 90,756
CSMC 2021-B33 Class A2
142,000 3.17% due 10/10/43(D) 0.2 120,475
Ellington Financial Mortgage Trust 2022-4
Class A3
882,862 5.90% due 09/25/67(1).(%) 1.5 868,557
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Exeter Automobile Receivables Trust 2021-2
Class D
220,308 1.08% due 11/16/26 0.4 214,100
Fannie Mae Interest Strip Class C57
1,197,683 3.00% due 03/25/52 0.3 194,260
Fannie Mae Interest Strip Class C8
1,311,432 2.50% due 06/25/52 0.3 200,305
Fannie Mae REMICS Class A
446,328 3.00% due 05/25/48 0.7 391,222
Fannie Mae REMICS Class AE
535,858 4.00% due 02/25/48 0.8 494,729
Fannie Mae REMICS Class AQ
1,000,000 2.00% due 08/25/50 1.3 764,738
Fannie Mae REMICS Class AZ
2,409,957 2.50% due 06/25/51 2.3 1,337,607
Fannie Mae REMICS Class KT
1,500,000 2.50% due 12/25/49 2.0 1,145,313
Fannie Mae -Aces Class AlX
294,258 2.46% due 05/25/30(3) 0.5 266,015
Fannie Mae -Aces Class 10
2,512,020 1.28% due 07/25/29(3) 0.2 115,020
Fannie Mae -Aces Class X2
1,612,688 1.24% due 03/25/31(3) 0.2 92,340
FIVE 2023-V1 Mortgage Trust Class D
100,000 6.30% due 02/10/56(1).(3) 0.1 89,186
Freddie Mac REMICS Class BZ
4,027,896 3.00% due 04/15/44 6.1 3,532,452
Freddie Mac REMICS Class SB
420,450 0.00% due 07/15/43(2) 0.4 263,491
Freddie Mac REMICS Class SD
2,118,454 0.00% due 08/25/51(2) 0.0 14,757
GAIA Aviation Ltd. Class A
258,855 3.97% due 12/15/44(1).(4) 0.4 237,487
Government National Mortgage Association
Class Cl
1,253,098 3.00% due 10/20/51 0.3 202,026
Government National Mortgage Association
Class El
1,002,400 3.00% due 07/20/50 0.3 159,418
Government National Mortgage Association
Class IL
1,151,661 3.00% due 06/20/51 0.3 186,212
Government National Mortgage Association
Class 10
2,010,776 0.59% due 05/16/61(3) 0.2 94,195
1,628,226 0.60% due 04/16/64(3) 0.1 83,015
2,093,491 0.61% due 05/16/65(3) 0.2 100,095
2,082,751 0.72% due 10/16/63(® 0.2 133,673
1,671,954 0.82% due 02/16/63(3) 0.2 99,780
1,803,759 0.88% due 08/16/64(3) 0.2 137,258
1,613,162 0.98% due 05/16/63(3) 0.2 108,160
1,354,983 1.15% due 08/16/62(3) 0.2 104,508
1,292,554 2.50% due 11/20/51 0.3 167,631
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Government National Mortgage Association
Class IW
1,344,827 2.50% due 09/20/50 0.3 179,768
Government National Mortgage Association
Class Kl
631,609 3.00% due 02/20/51 0.2 98,762
Government National Mortgage Association
Class PY
1,000,000 3.50% due 09/16/43 1.5 899,620
Government National Mortgage Association
Class TI
811,922 3.00% due 09/20/51 0.2 127,477
Great Wolf Trust 2019-WOLF Class A
100,000 6.67% due 12/15/36(1).(2) 0.2 99,937
Great Wolf Trust 2024-WOLF Class C
100,000 7.69% due 03/15/39(1).(2) 0.2 99,969
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2015-GC28 Class
XA
1,318,524 0.96% due 02/10/48(3) 0.0 5,661
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2017-GS6 Class
XA
841,629 1.01% due 05/10/50(3) 0.0 21,766
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2017-GS7 Class
XA
932,509 1.08% due 08/10/50(3) 0.0 25,829
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2020-GC45 Class
XA
1,209,939 0.66% due 02/13/53(®) 0.1 32,523
Hardee®s Funding LLC Class A23
236,875 5.71% due 06/20/48(1) 0.4 223,389
J.P. Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2019-MFP Class D
120,000 7.03% due 07/15/36(1.(2) 0.2 116,448
Jamestown CLO XII Ltd. Class A2
500,000 7.73% due 04/20/32(1).(2) 0.9 502,855
Jamestown CLO XVI Ltd. Class A
500,000 6.79% due 07/25/34(1).(2) 0.9 499,990
JP Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2014-C20 Class XA
537,543 0.68% due 07/15/47(3) 0.0 38
JP Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2016-JP3 Class B
100,000 3.40% due 08/15/49(3) 0.1 84,812
JP Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2018-WPT Class FFX
67,000 5.36% due 07/05/33(1),(3) 0.1 38,882
JP Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2020-LOOP Class E
100,000 3.86% due 12/05/38(1).(3) 0.1 67,099
JPMBB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2014-C23 Class D
100,000 3.98% due 09/15/47(1).(3) 0.1 90,270
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JPMBB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2015-C32 Class XA

782,218 1.11% due 11/15/48(3) 0.0 7,226
JPMDB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2020-COR7 Class B

107,000 3.29% due 05/13/53(3) 0.1 72,042
JPMDB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2020-COR7 Class XA

904,354 1.64% due 05/13/53(3) 0.1 52,732
Legacy Mortgage Asset Trust 2020-GS4 Class Al

212,168 6.25% due 02/25/60(1).(%) 0.4 213,085
LFT CRE 2021-FL1 Ltd. Class B

100,000 7.18% due 06/15/39(1).(2) 0.2 97,806
Long Beach Mortgage Loan Trust 2006-9 Class
2A2

1,346,126 5.66% due 10/25/36(2 0.7 429,670

Marble Point CLO XXIl Ltd. Class A

500,000 6.79% due 07/25/34(1).(2) 0.9 498,311
Med Trust 2021-MDLN Class G

99,522 10.68% due 11/15/38(1).(2) 0.2 98,030

Merrill Lynch Alternative Note Asset Trust
Series 2007-0AR5 Class 1Al

849,975 3.50% due 10/25/47(3) 0.4 256,683
MF1 2021-FL7 Ltd. Class A

94,297 6.51% due 10/16/36(1),(2) 0.2 93,498
MHC Trust 2021-MHC2 Class A

68,029 6.28% due 05/15/38(1).(2) 0.1 67,604

Morgan Stanley Bank of America Merrill Lynch
Trust 2014-C19 Class XA
881,136 0.95% due 12/15/47(3) 0.0 1,809
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 2017-HR2 Class C
100,000 4.32% due 12/15/50(3) 0.2 90,325
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2016-UB11
Class XA
979,738 1.44% due 08/15/49(3) 0.0 26,659
Morgan Stanley Capital | Trust 2016-UBS12
Class XA
1,044,176 0.65% due 12/15/49(3) 0.0 14,830
Morgan Stanley Capital | Trust 2017-H1 Class
XA
809,460 1.30% due 06/15/50(3) 0.0 20,936
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2019-L3 Class
XA
1,582,996 0.61% due 11/15/52(3) 0.1 42,471
Natixis Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2020-2PAC Class D

113,000 3.75% due 12/15/38(1) 0.2 104,388
0BX 2023-NQM1 Trust Class Al

864,636 6.12% due 11/25/62(1).() 1.5 861,428
Pagaya Al Debt Trust 2023-5 Class A

202,344 7.18% due 04/15/31(1) 0.3 202,948
Pagaya Al Debt Trust 2023-6 Class A

201,880 7.13% due 06/16/31(1) 0.3 202,656
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PMT Credit Risk Transfer Trust 2019-2R Class
A
223,803 9.19% due 05/30/25(1).(2) 0.4 223,919
PRET 2021-RN2 LLC Class Al
251,488 1.74% due 07/25/51(1),(4) 0.4 242,500
PRPM 2021-2 LLC Class A2
600,000 3.77% due 03/25/26(1).(3) 1.0 587,036
RALI Series 2006-QS13 Trust Class 1A3
324,232 6.00% due 09/25/36 0.4 239,558
RALI Series 2007-QH5 Trust Class All
936,047 5.90% due 06/25/37(2) 0.6 380,236
RASC Series 2007-EMX1 Trust Class Al3
183,420 5.64% due 01/25/37(2) 0.3 181,694
Renaissance Home Equity Loan Trust 2006-4
Class AF2
635,400 5.29% due 01/25/37(4) 0.3 202,728
SoFi Professional Loan Program 2017-E LLC
Class B
377,013 3.49% due 11/26/40(1) 0.6 363,152
SoFi Professional Loan Program 2017-E LLC
Class C
250,000 4.16% due 11/26/40(1) 0.4 229,187
Soho Trust 2021-SOHO Class B
77,000 2.70% due 08/10/38(1).(3) 0.1 48,479
Spruce Hill Mortgage Loan Trust 2020-SH1
Class M1
500,000 3.22% due 01/28/50(1).(3) 0.8 482,557
STWD 2019-FL1 Ltd. Class AS
100,000 6.83% due 07/15/38(1).(2) 0.2 98,528
Taco Bell Funding LLC Class A23
196,500 2.54% due 08/25/51(1) 0.3 161,129
Towd Point Mortgage Trust 2022-1 Class Al
980,988 3.75% due 07/25/62(1).(3) 1.6 906,166
TRTX 2021-FL4 Issuer Ltd. Class A
67,751 6.64% due 03/15/38(1).(2) 0.1 66,812
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C1 Class
XA
862,062 1.53% due 06/15/50(3) 0.0 31,639
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C3 Class
XA
1,950,489 1.11% due 08/15/50(3) 0.1 49,151
Upstart Pass-Through Trust Series 2021-ST7
Class A
5,628 1.85% due 09/20/29(1) 0.0 5,614
Verus Securitization Trust 2021-R1 Class M1
500,000 2.34% due 10/25/63(1) 0.7 420,051
Verus Securitization Trust 2023-1 Class Al
601,240 5.85% due 12/25/67(1).(4) 1.0 597,259
Verus Securitization Trust 2023-INV1 Class Al
842,974 6.00% due 02/25/68(1).(4) 1.4 838,978
Visio 2019-2 Trust Class M1
1,575,000 3.26% due 11/25/54(1).(3) 2.3 1,357,089
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Washington Mutual Mortgage Pass-Through
Certificates WMALT Series 2005-3 Trust Class
1CB1

1,260,413 5.50% due 05/25/35 1.8 1,066,028
Washington Mutual Mortgage Pass-Through
Certificates WMALT Series 2007-2 Trust Class
1A1

371,800 7.00% due 04/25/37 0.3 177,210

Washington Mutural Asset-Backed Certificates
WMABS Series 2006-HE5 Trust Class 2A3
1,142,464 3.92% due 10/25/36(2) 0.7 397,792
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2015-
C27 Class A5
100,000 3.45% due 02/15/48 0.2 97,220
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2016-
C33 Class XA
658,118 1.56% due 03/15/59(3) 0.0 15,628
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-
C38 Class XA
812,096 0.93% due 07/15/50(3) 0.0 18,715
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2019-
C54 Class XA
1,434,573 0.82% due 12/15/52(3) 0.1 49,849
Wells Fargo Mortgage Backed Securities 2006-
AR14 Trust Class 2A1

286,519 6.38% due 10/25/36(3) 0.4 263,234
34,810,317
17.4

U.S. Treasury Bond
4,300,000 4.25% due 02/15/54 7.2 4,210,640
4,400,000 4.75% due 11/15/43 7.8 4,525,125

U.S. Treasury Note
1,400,000 4.00% due 01/31/29 2.4 1,383,047
10,118,812

20.8

Fannie Mae Pool

334,492 3.00% due 11/01/46 0.5 293,808
779,880 3.50% due 01/01/46 1.2 719,751
275,686 3.50% due 02/01/51 0.4 249,053
1,483,247 3.50% due 05/01/52 2.3 1,320,285
1,146,000 5.05% due 01/01/30 2.0 1,145,125
Freddie Mac Gold Pool
464,910 3.50% due 08/01/46 0.7 421,721
Freddie Mac Pool
426,639 3.00% due 07/01/47 0.6 372,744
1,428,945 3.00% due 05/01/52 2.1 1,239,235
2,191,680 3.00% due 08/01/52 3.3 1,900,715
834,822 4.00% due 08/01/52 1.3 768,469
1,427,991 4.00% due 01/01/53 2.3 1,314,136
1,374,384 4.50% due 07/01/52 2.2 1,300,124
735,907 5.00% due 06/01/53 1.3 723,397
Ginnie Mae Il Pool
399,211 2.50% due 08/20/51 0.6 337,362
12,105,925
57,035,054
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(@)
63,410,976 57,035,054
63,410,976 97.9 57,035,054
2.1 1,211,598
100.0 58,246,652

(9,381,788,238 )

(1)144A 1933 144A
(2)2024 29 Floating Rate
(3)2024 29 Variable Rate
(4)2024 29

161.07
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Brown
Brothers
. 26,750 2024 28 178 1 1
Harriman & (178)
Co.
CITI PB 317,407,273 2024 28 (2,117,025) 11,933 11,933
CITI PB 48,813 2024 28 (7,318,833) 277) @77)
11,934 (277) 11,657
Brown
Brothers
Harriman & 10,000 2024 28 (67) 1 1
Co.
CITI PB 6,015,370,711 2024 28 (40,120,970) 226,156 226,156
Brown
Brothers
Harriman & 9,861 2024 28 (1,480,944) (73) (73)
Co.
Brown
Brothers * *
Harriman & 28 2024 28 (4,135) () ()
Co.
CITI PB 924,777 2024 28 (138,657,442) (5,246) (5,246)
226,157 (5,319) 220,838
0.50
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2024 29
2017
2012 10 15
2021 a CIMA
2017 30
50
NRSRO
NRSRO
UFJ
UFJ SMBC
FASB ASC

946
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GAAP

GAAP

12

GAAP
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2024 29
2024 29
57,035,054 57,035,054
238,001 238,091
57,273,145 57,273,145
2024 29
(5,596) (5,596)
(5,596) (5.596)
2024 29
FASB ASC 740

50
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88,632
1,761,292
25,011,563
2024 29
()
(

2023 28
2024 29
2023 28
2024 29
2024 29

)
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1,223
36
30 440,549
4
28 7,000,825
)
)
) )

2,987,664 41,952,957 1,183,859 8,746,633 54,871,113
193,753 3,496,246 5,879 8,127,541 11,823,419
(694,308)  (102,930) (245,483)  (1,122,434)  (2,165,155)
(41,313)  (427,792) (27,789) (158,213) (655,107)
(372,562) (5,555,385) 20,946 279,383  (5,627,618)

2,073,234 39,363,096

937,412 15,872,910 58,246,652

53,589 717,435 143,134 985,552 1,899,710
3,331 64,850 720 921,283 990,184
(13,112) (1,936) (29,295) (127,118) (171,461)
43,808 780,349 114,559 1,779,717 2,718,433
47.33 50.44 8.18 8.92
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2017
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10,000

10.00

2024 29
29 9,922

30

10

15
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a b
c
ASC 815
1SDA 1SDA
1SDA
2024 29 MNA
MNA
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 2 (@)
CITI PB 238,089 (5,523) 232,566
238,091 (5,525) 232,566
2024 29 MNA
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MNA
()
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 73 (@) 71
CITI PB 5,523 (5,523)
5,596 (5,525) 71

@

2024 29

238,001 (5.,596)
2024 29
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(7,440,151) 783,311
0.68 0.03 0.25
0.22
0.40 0.35
2024 29 384,799 2024 29
28,652
0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05 50,000
2024 29 73,310
2024 29 12,432
0.015
15,000 2024 29
15,043 2024 29 7,874
0.02
2024 29 11,318 2024
29 1,921
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0.60
2024 29 339,528 2024
29 56,659
10
140,000
FATCA/CRS 1,500
11
LIBOR LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR 2021
LIBOR 2023
LIBOR LIBOR
LIBOR
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2007 - 2008

1970
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2024 29
12
13
2024
2024 2024 350
6,898 1,492 19,908
2024 2024 865,430
1,461,231 15,368
5,575 209,293
6,877 106,844
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
February 29, 2024

(€ ) in United States Doltar, unl nerwise indicated)

LS i

Fvsitmentt i tecuitien, st value [cost ol YD ELALD005)

Crik

Eeceivable for Urvts issued

Intivast rechable

Wndealingd iggrad Micn on Bdwird Iatsgn dar sy mchinge Snliidi
Tkl asymty

Lhabiiies:

Fayable for imvestmaents purdhased

Fayable Tar Uity rodewmed

Acerusd prafiionl fset

Accrued distriednes fees

Acorued mana gem et fees

Accrusd cuatodian and Tub- simiEnatralen e
Acerued trpnslar gent hsey

Accrund trustee bees

Unrealingd degreciation on Eanward fonsgn culrency schangs mnkacts
Accrued agent company's fees.

Accrud ot aapinses

Tolal Rabiities

Mt Ausets dtiributable o Unithcldars

Anakai of Net ety

Fad in capital

Crwred ativi Rl #arings bl SitiBuiont
Mt Asyirts Altributak b 1o Unithcldan

Bt Axsot Velue por Link
CFY Moniky Divirothen Do BB 350, 300,933 + 43 203 Units cubviamdingd

CIFY Sern L dnnua | Ditroution Class IPY 58014745784 7E3, 349 Uniy outitardng

S0 Monty Divtribution Clars WD 937,413 4 114,559 Undts sutstanding}

(W50 Samni-Annuat Dt ibution Class U0 15872910 & 1779, 717 Undls sutstanding)
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L S1EA5084

EREEERT

a1

T, 160
1 1>
—EET

509,750

=t

BOARD

6,450

el

1241

10,182

ramy

5596

191
— T

B33 313
Ml saEiEsl

o T, 560,833
—  LORLTEL
L A I
L5
u
L i
" (S

The actom panying notes ane anintegral part of these financlal statements.
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DOUBLELNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

AExprisied in United States Daltr]
e
Fiberaat M RIAREL
Tol b Iweltmant nisma I— e L
Engrntim
PAsrag et B LR
[Etributnrs e 33528
Frofessiona feet 1067
Cuntodisnand - sdministrators (s 13,310
Trumee Tees 150543
Sgpent Denwgany's Fnst 11,318
Trarabae ageeties 10,028
R e —_— BRI
Tols Eapanit —_— LIGAAIE
Biet brrnsbment incoma P LY
Eoralized gaisf[losdes) snd changs in umrealize d appredation {dmpredition):
Eaabrad gaansflzatenh
rvreiments i pocuritey £1,34R053)
Forsgn arrency brarmaaions g farwan Fesge cur rency seohsnge meladt FAS0ORS
P realived bovses Eﬁmz
Change i unr el ined apgreciationfidesrecatan)
Frwmmaents i secunbes IG5 a0
Taidigh furrdasy I hn i Band ind Faiw ied Tandigh et shly dehafgs Emirian e
Prel cPungs inunre sl jed speredtion 1059744
Pial o il il ] changpe i runngslined loniet el Eppesalion — L AT
Mt divcr o ve b met avesks resulting From operatioe 1K1 iSELLELD

The actom panying notes ane anintegral part of these financlal statements.
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DOUBLELNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IIN MNET ASSETS
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024
[Exprissed in United States Dolkr)
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srem s [(Deoreane] bn Mek Assets from;

Opara ticanc

P e i el i

Mt el ed lomes

Mgt changes Ir unneallped sopreciatian

Mt deoregue in net apiets repiting from operaticnrn

Wt stions Lo Unithaldars:
JFY Borithly Distribution Cls
JFY Spmni-Annual Disribution Olass
W50 Mionthly st bution Oass
S0 S vl D4 st buatinn Ol
Total ribution

Capital Transsdions:
Binild e
JFY Merthly Diotribiution Class (3,331 Urits)
JPY Saiwvd Annual Divtrioutian Class (63,350 Unlsh
US0 Misrthly Distrbutan Class [0 Unity)
USD Sem - Aeeval NS Bributian Class (921,283 Undzp

Unity redesmed

JPY Meritindy Distripation Class (13,12 Uit}

JFY Sl Annusl Divritstian Clasy [ 1936 Uniti]

USD Mionthly Déstribubon Claes (29,295 Undsh

USE Spni-Arvrul e it buien Chidd (127,118 Unitg)
Mt inereate in et 15001 reuling Tram it Tanisction

Toted Incree in Het Awets
Bt Asseas:

Eagirrirg el yiar
End af yoar

The actom panying notes ane anintegral part of these financlal statements.
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R TRALAT)

—_— L

N 1A T

181318

4279

FERE ]

— sy
—_— [BERI0T

193,753
3496146
5500
8127541

1&Aa,304}
[302.9300
| 285483}
—_— LA
—_— oG

— LAmAN

54,871,113
F: (R



DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

(Exprissid in United States Dolkr)
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Crih flews Trom cporating activitio:

Nt decrease in net assets resuing from operations

Adpastments to reconcle the net decrmse in met aveets resultting from operations be et cah used in

opering sctivitie
Furchaie of sttty
Froceedt (rom wake and matuity of imestmenty

Mot e tiratioe and [acoretion | of promiums and Snomsueds on cofporste debl s et e snd chart bemy

vestments
Faalted lasses on Imestments in seousties

Change in unreal ined appreciation on investmanty

Changs i und eal e apeeciation on forwang Torgn e ency sachangs Sorracs

Changi bn Eviets dad labilith cilatsd o cgarstingg:

Deereate n inbes ol recelvalie

Deorease in aoorued cusBodian andg sub.admishirator's lres

Dcriaie in dearued s cormpamy's e
D ease in aoorued distributors feea
Increase i & corued manage mank e
naeaie N ssorued profes lonal fies

Doy pasein acorund regatrakion fees
oreane in gcorued tansler agent foes
REreie i aocrued truttee besg

hoeae in acorued obher expermes

Mt cailh used n operating activEles

Cash Hows provided by financing ndivties:
Frochadi feam Usith Bivsd

Faryrrsenit s 0 Leiis redesmad
Eitriion: pald to Unithaldery

Mol cuib provided by fingnoing o cdivilie

Mt deanese In cavh and fomign curmey

Carkh ard forsgn aurrency at beginning of yeur
Cash and forslgn murrancy ot end of year

The actom panying notes ane anintegral part of these financlal statements.
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(00127}
A LA

[y

13430353
66,14%)
[FE3ALIN

5521

(#1.117)

(L0l

147,970

117

71183

304

[501]

1330
S R
P L1 X

11528111
(1188743}
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024
Selected Per Unit Data and Ratios
[Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise mdicated)
1P Meathly T Sl Amsvei | IS0 M thy UsG Sami-Annual
Distrlation Class Divteibution Cass Distributicn Cliss Dhtsibuties Clria
Foot Uhis ¥orar Endled Te Lhe Yot Ended Tosthe Yoar Ended  For the Year Endud
—Eobrupry J3, 3034 Febregry 20, 3004 Fobrupee 19,2034 Fubruges 39, 2004

Mot Avuet Value, beginning of yer wy 2504 L LGN UsD B3 uUSD AT
Tt imve st incama Fih] e ] E ]
et realined 3o unredlied lotoes L] LI 06 [ (L16E
Pk |decreatelinc aate in net ansets rirsulling framn

ey athorn 351} 1335) 015 oLy
Le3s dstriseticr [Fa]] L] day [{ ]
Psl Asiet Value, end ol paar Ll 7083 Ll 2550 Usp 8313 uUsn =ay
Tkl Fetury 15188 |8 24p% 1A% 1084
Fatl 2o Supplaanent of dai:

Mt sitels end of year (0007 s} L] 330,301 Y LENLATA (15 1] LT ] 15873
i of Snpsierias b9 avarage nel sl L3S 1% L6 Lrss
Fati o of redt imvstmeenk | oo o avera ge net

FE ] S LAY LR LB AT

= Caiculaied using average Units o ubstanding Tor the year.

The actom panying notes ane anintegral part of these financlal statements.
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DOUBLELNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS
February 29, 2024

[Expriessed in United States Dol

Prisipal %l Nt

Lur Asnpunt S Dy Assnty Falr Vslwe
FIEED INCOME SECURITEES [57.59%)
UNTTED STATTS (TR
ASETT-DACKID STCURETIES Fo )
Befirm Awt Secunization Trust 20354 Chaih

LSD EOOOM GBI Son OLLRTES [T o 0,03
B e Duts Cancers Inuer LLE Clis B

LD TOOOM B due S0 3 EEE %]
Adtwreatnee Losn Trunk FO0%-4 (e 147

[T-] AFYIET 5.50W due 255 L1 T4, 395
Bvereathen Lann Trost BOO7-0A% Cluis LA

st ADEESE SO0 due GG2SHTR T ]
BANILL Cornm ercial MAgrigape Serunes Trins HRS-RL O A

usp 100000 GEXW dee (41535 L] 9875
AN 00 TN Claia )0,

usD AT 1. 54% dos SRS 0] FiT
BN PO TENME Clads A

LisD L3134 TN due DO/LE O [T 4558
AN PO EABNLD Dlas W4

[154] LFILAE AT der D1EELD -1} 902
TBANE JOT1-T 5 Cless A5

1] IGO0 LT due 061554 ¥ 100,156
BANK T001-BNKIE Clain AS

ush 00 DS dee U154 L% a0,
BELAS 2018-TALL NMorngsps Trow Clags F

usk 10000 B7SW dee 01537 3] GEELT

Truit 2000-CH Clast A5

[£254] 126000 T.04% dee 107155 [+ ] 13718
BREN Morgage Truit 2001019 Cliid A

[T, 100 hEE dee §1/15/T4 1] B4, 550
BBLME Momgage Trust 2002-C18 Clas XD

LIS L0020 18N due LRI @3 180347
et Eearra AR Trust FRE-1 Clans 341

LSD FMASE  S.7EW dee 00/REHTS (%] 182, 50
B Seunn Aser Bicknd Seounmied | Trum J007-HEG Clan 1AL

Uk REIED S o DRSS 3] 47,151
B hemanrk TSR Mot gage Trust Clam A3

LiSE 10000 270 due SRM1ES) [¥] 141,187
et stk TOI0-B1 6 Mbortpiadie Tl Cliia A4

(141 12500 £.55% dhue DRS15/EY [} ] 2T
Senthmark TRM-BLE Mortpage Tt Clas XA

usn 588050 L.7EM rhue (/L5535 L 62,353
Beers hoerk FOROHGT Mot gage Trunt Cleas X4

LisD e AR DI due (LRI [} AR
B bk TOR1-BI0 Mot gage Trust (ass A5

uso 125000 .56M deed L1575 %] 104,040
B0 TI4-5CT Mormgage Trum Class &5

(1°4] 100000 S 2EW dee 1S 7 102.EH
B Trasd FOLS-0C1 Claw £

sl 134,60 LU tus LR 3 1Y
i Tt B A-008 1 Class 8

LIS SATRGM Gl due LB (He i Shissk
Camnghen Morgage Loan Trus Senes F00E-NCE D A3

usD TG 550N due 1RSI LT 1IBISE
ol CLORK-C L1a, Caind

usD OO0 POOW dye U0 L2 ] 0170
0 20UT-C0n Msrigage Truss Clina XA

[1-4] L1t7.542 L% due 05/ LO/50 1] IT364
0L Mo e P ae-Thiough Tring 7006085 O TAL

ush BLAGLD  S.BAN Due L2EMGER [k ATLEF
i growy Commeribl Morigage Trad J015-G035 D B4

LISy LAMEEE  BTEW des B31OMED ] 13547
Ot greep Comereisl Mormgage Truin 200797 Gy XA

usD LR L DB e ot L4 L] B0
Ot groaup Comenerpisl Morigage Truss 2020555 Cus E

ush 10000 150 due 131058 (11 3,732
it grow Commarcisl Worgage Tridd 2090- 956 Clais P

(7] 100000 L5 due 2100 4] 1A
o Commenereisl i TeLg 2020 GOEE (i A

[13°] 115,000 ?.mvmmﬂ Mo o3 100,55

The actom panying notes ane anintegral part of these financlal statements.

93/214



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000O0oonognognoOonod(e27078)
OooOooooOoooooooooboood

DOUBLELNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS [continued)
February 29, 2024

[Expriessed in United States Dol

Prncigsl %% of hat
Cumency Amount Semurity Dmaorigtion sty Fair velun

FEAED BCOINEE SECURITRES (37.5%] [rantinue )
URITED STATES 89,000 | {2 oslioe o]

ASSET-OACKE B STCURITEES | 557} [continued))
CANC 200 9ALY Lo, Clasi A%

wi S e S o OB 20/ o i ELE L]
COLT 20071 Mortgsge Lown Trusk Clse AL

(1) 435,07 o DS B DT Eg T &7 AL RIE
COUT 200 33 Mengags Lown Truw Cland AR

usn LOZEFE0 & GO dem DTS5/ Gm 18 10250448
DONIA I0IA-CORELR Martpage Trum Daid &

LiSh 3, oy & 460 Sos DOITLETN [ ¥} HTESS
CONM PR SLERT Mot gage Trns Cass XA

s LES3.605 53N S 10/ 100E2 g nEe
e 201 HCLE Commenial Miortigaiie Trast Ok &4

uib L1333 100w LIRS at &RIFF
CEAL PORRET Clais A

LD 100,505 .68 gus DATLEITH a1 93167
AL 202100 Claia

sk bLA i 3.05% ion EOTLOMS &3 0,755
CSMIC POQ 1633 Clads AT

LisD 142,000 TP e HVLOAST a3 134T
ERgron Fn sneisl Morigags Trost 014 D A3

Uss BATEST 5 B0 s DRSS 17 BSRSST
Bt Astosiabils Ror sivald v Truit 2001-2 D D

sk TS 10N oem L1161TS oaa T14. 100
Fannie hiaa Inleedt SErip Clais C5F

uin LI4T.GEE 00 e OL2ETD a1 184,140
Fanmie M e Ircem 8 Srp Qe 08

Ui FREFAH 1500 tm OL2E2 a1 0T
Fannie his Pna O Claw &

uish 44538 T 00 oo D550 a7 ¥E1LIE
Fannie s RERICE Class A

LISk 515 K58 o, D e OOV ISAA. o 434709
Fannie bas RENICS Class AQ

(14 1, Do, 3t X000 e DRTDESE0 Ly WA, TI8
Fannie Maz RENHES Cass AT

(1)) T8 557 T.50N o D651 3 L.337 807
FannisMas REWVECS Claii KT

sl 1500000 F.508 dem 150G e L.145313
Fannie Mas Ao Claas AL

Ui H Fiw Tkl mom DTS af LR URY
Fannbe Mo Ace s Class 10

sh LELE O3 L. 286 sow D519 @2 115000
Fannie bas -Ace Oais

L) LalZ s LM g DRSS ay LA
FIVE 10034 1 Morgage Trus Qs [

LD bR [ T R A R at A8, 165
Fredde Mac RERMCS Cass BT

LS 4,027 EiG .00 e S F1548 &t 3,537 457
Feeddia Mpr REMICS Clasy 58

sk AJNASD .00 dum DTTLEET md 53441
et b o FERRICS Clwn 35

ush LItRASE .00 tom ORTTEELD an 14,767
GAIA Bevinbon Lid. Clads A

usn FSHESS  LOPN Sum LILGLE ad FATAET
dhiprpmstee Kabon il Moagsge Anociamn Claas O

L LISHIA .00 sum B0 al TRmn
Gowememant hation sl Momgage Associaion Cads B

(5} Liag.a00 00 e 0TS 20/80 a3 155418
T Ktion ol iortg sge A svociabinn Clags Il

s 1,151,681 . O0A ae DEROMEL @3 185,212
Govemeend Hation sl Morigage &sociabmn Cads | O

s LOLDTTR L [k #3595

LSk LTI feln R B [: 13 BXH5

(4] L.043.49] TN e TELAE5 Lok 100,085

ush Z0EZTS1 G oo V1GR3 a2 1335673

L L It LT a3 T

s LE03T59 X B [k} 137358

LsD pEER T Ll o D az 108 150

i LI 1.1 o DR LR a3 106 500

sk 1192554 T.508 o T1LD0/EL a3 167631

The acom panying nates ane anintegral part of these financal atements.
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DOUBLELNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS [continued)
February 29, 2024

[Expriessed in United States Dol

Prncigsl %% of hat
Cumency Amount Semurity Dmaorigtion sty Fair velun

FEAED BCOINEE SECURITRES (37.5%] [rantinue )
URITED STATES 89,000 | {2 oslioe o]

ASSET-QACKE B STCURITEES | 557} [continued))
homrmistann] Mition il Siorgage Asoc alion Clads W

sk 134817 T.508 o [R/I0SER D D 179,768
et Rtion u) Womg age ko abnn Claas i

(1) 611608 T 00ad s OTROSL ] 98 762

hition sl Morngage A Claas Py

LisD L (=30 e T e ] L5 BEREI0
et BT an &l orTgags Axiocisian OsdsTi

LiSh BLLER T, 000 Som DRI/ i) 13TAIF
Gread Woel Tret 300 WOLF Des A

L 1041180 e BB LIS o A
rwat Wl Trodt 2004 WOLF D &

sk JLOTRL ] 7,694 tem D159 oz 99,969
35 Mongage Secorties Trost BM5-G028 Ois XA

L LS e om D100 oo L8]
3 Mtorigage becurdm Trst K3F-G50 dbas X

sk BRI AT 5.0 slem DETLOTHY [ 21,765
% Mortgage Securi Trust N0 -G57 Cass 00

LisD S35 LD o (R 1O/S0EN oo Ll k]
G5 Mg St urtios Thust TEHG045 (i XA
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DOUBLELNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS [continued)
February 29, 2024
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DOUBLELNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS [continued)
February 29, 2024
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DOUBLELNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

ORGANIZATION

BoubleLing Total Return Fuand (the "Serles Trust™) b a seres tnast of the Nido AM Offshore Funds, an open-ended undt
trust established by a supplemental trust deed dsted February 8, 2007 [the “Supplementsl Tras: Deed™), under the lws af
the Cayman llsnds. Nikkao AN Offshare Funds was established by o masier trest deed dated October 15, 2012 the
“Wiaster Trust Deed™}, under the bvws af the Caynan ldands and is lieensed with the Cryiran llands Monstary Autharisy
pursuant 10 section 4 1Ha) of she Muntual Funds Ace {2021 Bevsion), The Sefies Trust comamenced operations on Manch 30,
2007,

The Serles Trust's assets are managed on a day-to-day basls by Nikko AN Global Cayman Umited {the “Manager™)L The
Manager delegates Imvestment management duties to Mikko Asset Management Co., Lid, (the Sinvestment hanager™].
The levesiment Manager delegates investrment managerent duties 10 Doubleline Cagital LP, (the *Sub-Insvestment
Manager™). The adminlstration of the S2rkes Trust 5 ddegated to Brown Brothiers Hamdman & Co (the *Custodisn®™ and
“Sub-AudministeatarT), o limbed partnership coganized under thie kws of the S1ate of Mew Yark,

The invvestinent abjective of the Serbes Trust B 1o schieve a mid 1o long team 150l return thiough income and capital
appreciation, Under pormal cirourestances, the Series Trust will invest over 50% of I35 net assets in resldentlal ond
tommerclal mongagebacked securities, sctively allocated betwesn agency and non-agency securities.

Thesse Investments may indude mortgage-backed seourities of any maturity or type, including thase gusantesd by, or
secured by collaseral thas b guaranteed by, the Wnitesd States government, s agencies, insramentabities or spansoned
rorparaticns, and privately lsued mortgage-badked securities rated at the time of purchase Aa3 or higher by Moody's o
AA- ar highed by S&F or of an equivalent miing by any other natizaally recognized stanktical rating crganizatian {“MRSRO™)
that has been recognieed by the U5 Seourlties and Exchange Commision or mnrated secarities that are determined by the
Iveestment Manager of R defepates to be of comparable quality, These Investmednts also include, among ethers, ULS,
Government mortgage pass-thiough seomities, collateralized mortgage chligations, multidass pass-through securitdes,
private mart gage pass-through securbes.

The: Sedies Trust may ako invest in shom term inveestmments, such as notes lisued by LS, government agencies, and bonds,
delst securkies and ather ficed Income nstrements Bsued by WS, governmental or prvate-sector entities, or other asset-
backed chligations, collateralized Boan chbligaticns, and cobligations of the WS government and Es agencies,
Instrumentalities and sporored corporations.

The Series Trust may invest in bonds of any credit guality, incleding those that are at the time of Imvestment uneated o
rated BB+ of lower by SEP or Bal of lower by Moody's of of an equbalent rating by any athier NRSRO. Bonids and flxed
Income Instruments rated below investment grade, or such instruments that ane wnrated and delermined by the
Iveestment Manager or s dedegates to be of comparable qualizy, ane high yiedd, high risk bonds, commonly kncem as unk
bonds”. The Series Trust may ifest op to & thied of B4 me avees in junk bonds, bank losns and assignements that are elthes
rated below investmen? gmde or are wnrated but determined by the imestment Manager or s delegates 1o be of
tamparable quality, and credit default swaps of companiess in the high pield universe,

The Serfiss Trust may Imvest a portion of It net seets ininverse Tloster sscurities and interest-only and peinclpal-only
securithes

Undier the tenms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the BMaster Trust Deed, FistCorbbean International Bank and Trust
Company [Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee” and the "Admimistracse™) s named o Trostee of the Series Trust.

The Banager appointed Mitsubishi UF] Morgan Stanley Secwritles Co., Uid. 1o act as Agemt Company [the “Agent
Campany™} and the Manager sppoknted Mitsubishi UF) Morgan Stanley Securities Cou L1d, and SMBC Trust Bank Lid. 1o act
a5 Ditributors jthe “Distrbuions™ of Units in lapan.

SUMIMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCDUNTING POLICIES

The Series Trust s an irvesment company that Tollows the accounting and meporting guidance in FASE Accownting
Standards Codification 546,

Lise of Extimotes

The: accompanying financial statements have Been prepared in sccordance with sccowent ing princigles generally sccepied in
the: United States of America | U5 GAAPTL The preparation of financlal statements in accordance with LS, GAAP requires
the Sedies Trust's management 1o make edtimates and assenptions that affect the repored amounts of ssses and
labilitles and disclosures of contingent assets and labilitles at the date of the financlal statements and the neparted
amcunts of revenues snd expenses during the reporting period. Actual results, inchuding the ultirate amownt resliced
ugen the sale of fair walued Inestrents, could differ from those estimates and such differences may be significant.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

SUBINUAR'Y OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [continued)

Bosis of dccounting

Security and contractual transactions are reconded om @ tradefcontract-date bask, intenest income s recorded on an
effectie vield bask, net of any applicable withhalding tas Interest expense and other expenses are fecorded on on aterusl
basks. Reallzed gains and losses from security transactions are computed on the basis of the average tost of the securites
sald or covered, Changes In the wluation of imestments are recordied In the Statement of Operations as unaealized
appreciation or depreciation.

Valuetion of lnvestments

Bonds and other debt secadties, inchuding restricted securities [other than shon-term obligations but mcluding Bsred
Isses) are falr welued at thedr bt sle price in the princpal rmarke? In which such seourises are noemally traded, on the
basls af valuations furnished by & pricing service, use of which has been spproved by the Investment Managed, of if no sale
hexs oooumred, the bid price on the vahsation date o provided by brokers wha are market makers in the securities. All debt
secu hies with bess than 12 months to maturity date, In principle shall ke falr valoed wing an amortized cost effected by an
effective yield acoumulated/amartization methed to thelr maturity date with adjustments based on comparison with
market prices as required,

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on fair value measurements and disclosares under WS, GAAP, the Series
Trrt discloses the fair value of s inestments in a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation fechnigues uied to
measure the far value, The hierarchy ghoes the highes prinety 1o valuations based upon uhadjuited quated prices in 2 tive
markets for [dentical msets or Eabilkies {Level 1 messorement) and the lowest priodty o welvations based upan
uncbsercable inputs that are significant 12 the valuatizn [Level 3 reeasurements), The gudance establishes theee kvek of
the fair sabue hdevarchy as follows:

& Level 1 - Inputs that reflect unedjissted quated prices in sctive maskets for ldentical invesireents that the Sedes
Trust has the abillty to access 21 the meawremen: date;

& Level 2 - lnputs ather than quated prices thet are dgnificant and obseresble for the asset o liabilley either
directly or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are nat considenéd 1o be azthe;

®  Level 3 = Inputs that are significant and uncbsenable,

Ingins are used i applying the varkows vala tion techniques and broadly refer 1o the assumpticns that market panticipants
wse- to make valuation declslons, incuding asswmptions about risk. Inputs may include price infonmation, specific and broad
credit data, liguidity statlstics, and other {acters, A financial instrament’s kevel within the fair valae hisrarchy & based upon
the lowest level of any Input that s sgnificant to the falr valus mesmrement. Howewer, the determination of what
tanatitines “obiervabile™ requires significant jedgment by the lovestment Manager. The lnvesament Manager considers
chssrvakle data fo be markes data which & readily eailable, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and veriflable, not
proprietary, and pravided by independent sources that are acthely invndlved in the refivant market. The categartzation af &
financial instrament within the hisrarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the instrament and does 1o necessarnily
worrespand fo the Ineestment Manoger™s peroebeed risk of that instrument.

Investments whase values are Based on the quoted market prices in active maskets, snd therefore classified within Level 1,
wiaild inchude actheely taded pquities, and certain LLS, government and sovereign cbligations, The lrvesiment Manager
wrald not adjust the quoted price for such instrum ents, evn in sluations whens the Series Trust held a bge position and
a sale could ressonabily impact the quoted price,

IveesEments that trade in markets that are not consldered o be active, but ane walued based on quoted market prices,
thealer guistations of altermathee priding sownces supported by obssrvables inpues are dlassified within Level 2. These inchade
Ivvestment-grade debt seourities, short-ieom ineestrments and forsand forelgn currency exchange contracts and may alio
Include certaln svist-badeed wscorithes and collateralined martgage obligations. ds Lesel 2 invnsstrments indude poskions
that are nat traded in acthee markets andfor are subject o ransfer restrictions, valuations may ke adjusted 1o reflect
illiquidey andiar non-ransferatilivg, which are genedally based on available market informaticn,

Investments classified within Level 3 hawve signdficant unobdervable npes, a5 they would trade infrequently. Level 3

Instruments would include certain ssset-backed securites and callateralived mengage obligations As observable prices are
nat svailable for those seouriies, thie Sekes Trust wiould use valiatian technguees to dediee the faic value,
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DOUBLELNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

SUMMIAR'Y OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [continued)

Valuation af investments feontinged)
The Ingeuts ar method clogy wied for vahsing seourkies ane not recessarly an indication of the dsk assodated with Investing
i thass setuitios.

The foliowing tabile presents the fnancial instrements canded on the Statement of Assets and Labilities by coptian snd by
level withén the valuation hierarchy as of Febmary 2%, 2004, Further classifications of the financial Instnements are
presented bn the Portfalio of Investments,

FairValun at
Asuaty ok Falr Volue Ll 1 Leveld Lovel ¥ February 19, 1024
Fined Income Secur tes (152 ] - [331] 57,005,004 L1 o] - (1] 1 52055054
Fermard Farsgn Currensy
Exchiege Cordracty - 238,033 - 13501
Toksl U’EI - [ 7.2TII4N [ - [ & 57,273,185
FairVelue at
Lisbliins a8 Fair Valus Lol Larvel2 Level Eolinaary 29, 2024
Forward Forsgn Curvency
Excio Conltrids (150 = Lis ] [ i = LED [kl
T s P S—T—CT ——

Cruring the yeal erded February 29, 2024, there were no ransfers in or ot of Level 3. The Series Trust's polity 15 1o
dieterming bevelling and assew all transfers a5 at a year end date.

Fovelgn Corrency Tronslotan

Asdztd and Bebllides held In curfence s othes than Undted States Dollar {UED" o the *Functienal Cufrency™) e Fansbated
o the Functional Currency at the rate of pachange prevaling o1 the financial satement date, Income and expenses are
tranclated a1 the rate of eschange prevailing at the date on which the Income or experse B incurred. Realiced and
ueirealised gains and losses arlsing on foreign ourrency Wwansactions are Incleded In the Statement of Operations in the
peeviiad bn whilch they oocur,

Thee Sedlies Trust doss ot solate that porticn of the results of operations pesuling from changes. in forsipgn enchange rates
on Ivestiments from the luctuations arking from changes In market prices of secoriths held, Soch {luctuations are
Inchsded with the: neet realized and unrealined gain or loss from imestments.

Income Toxes

Under the cunment lrws of the Cayman tslands, there are na incomes. withhalding, copital gains or other taxes payable by
the Sewies Trust, In certain judsdiciians other than the Loyman Klands, forclgn tases may be withheld at source on
dividd=nds and Inter et recstved by the Serles Trust. Capltal gains derived by the Serles Trust in such jursdictions penerally
will be exempt from forelgn ncome or whhholding tases a2 source. The Seres Trust Intends to conduct Its affairs such that
It will g be subjecy fo income tax in sy purlsdictizn, As a resull, no provision Tor incame Tases has been made in the
financisl statements. Unitholders may be taced on thelr proportionate share of the Seies Trost™s tax bask income based
o their indhddusd circumstanes,

The Sefies Trast follows the authoritative guidance on sccounting for and disclosure of unosralnty in tax positions
[Fimancisd Accounting Standards Booard (*FASE®] - Accounting Standards Codification 740}, which requires the Manager io
dgtermine whether a tax position of the Seres Toust b more likely than not to be sustained upon samination by the
applicable tadng authority, including resclution af any refated appeaks or Btlgation prooesses, baded on the technical
merits of the position, For tas posiions meeting the more Bkely than not thredhold, the tax benedit recognized In the
financial statements 5 reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty pencent likelihood of belng realized upan
ubtimate settlemens with the refevan tasing authcaity, The Manager has determined thas theee is minimal oo na effec on
the financial s1atements being under this authoritative guidance,

Eomvand Fareign Currency Exchoage Contracts
The Sexdes Trust may enter info forward forelgn currency exchange condracts to hedge agalret forelgn cormren oy eachenge
rate riiks on oll of & portion of non-UPSC-denaminsted invesiments o for effident ponfolio mansgement purpoies. When
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

SUBINUAR'Y OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [continued)

Forward Fonelge Currency Exchonge Condrocts (continued)

entering into a forward foretgn cumrency exchange contract, the Series Trst agrees to recehe or deliver a fised quanthy of
fareign currency for an agresd-upon price an an agreed future date, Thess contrscts ane valued daily, and the Series Trus™s
net equity thersdn, representing unrealzed appreclationf{depreciation) on the contracts as measwred by the dffference
Eestaien et farwiard foreign currency escheonge rates of the dates of entry Bnto the contracts snd the forward rates at the
reparting date, Is induded in the S1aement of Assets and Uakilivies, Reallzed and unrealized gaims and losses are included
In the Statement of Cperations.

These nstraments Invabve market risk, oredin risk, or Both Meds of rsks, I excess of the amcunt recognized in the
Statement of Assets and Uabilitles. Risks arke from the posslble inability of cosnterparties to meet the terms of their
cantracts and from meoverment in Cumrency and securities values and interest rates, bn addition 1o the Class kel hedging,
the: Serles Trust had met realieed gain of S0 1,223 on & forward forelgn cosrency eschange contracts during the year with
an awerage noticnal of USD 82,632 and an average tenm to maturity of 3 days, The Sevies Trust also had net reallzed loss of
LED $40.549 on 36 farward forelgn currency exchange contracts held a1 the Y Monthly Disribation Class Hedged level
during the year with an average national of USD 1,761,252 and an sverage tenm o maturity of 30 days, The Sedes Trust
alsa had realized bass of USD 7,000,825 on 41 Toresrd farsign curfency eachsnge conlracts held at the (P9 Seani-Annes]
Ditrituntion Class Hedged leve during the year with an average natlonal of USE 25,011,563 and an averege tam to
bty of 28 days,

While all or substantially all of the assets of the Seves Trust may be hedd In LS. Dallars, & s Intended for the Serles Trust to
enter ina hedging arramgements Tor the Eenelit of JPY Monthly Distribution Class Wnits and JPY Seeni-Annual Diswibuion
Class Unlts, which ore denominated in Yen, Thase smangerents will be to hedge spainst adverse movements of the
wurrency of dencmination of the ivestments In the Series Trust redathee to Yen Any profits, gains, loses, oosts, income
and eapenditure sisaciated withsuch hedging anrangements will be borne by sach class,

For the year ended Febraary 29, 2024, the naticnal exposure on the 1Y Bonthly DEtibuticn Chass Unlts and 10Y Semi-
Annual Distribution Class Units forward oumenoy exchange contracts approadmated the sverage net assets for each dass
beiing net bang IPY and short USD. Open contracts at year end sre diidlodsd In the Portfolle of Wvestments.

Cash and Fereign Currency
Carsh and foreign currency comprises ol ourrency held with the Custodian, and averndght and ciber shom term placements
‘with ather financlal Instisutions,

UNITS

The: nert assets of the Sevies Trust are divided into JPY Monthly Gistribution Class Units, 1P Semd-Annual Distribution Olass
Unlts, LD Manthly atribution Ceas Ualts nd USD Semi-Annaal DEbtEan Cleds Units. The Units sre denciminated in
United States Dolar and lapanese Yen, P Monthly Distrituzion Class Units, # Semi-Annueal Bistribution Class Undts, USD
Ilanthly Hstribation Class Wnits and USD Semi-annual Distribution Cless Units are available to an digible vestor who 15
vy persan, corpodation of enity which b net (i) a citeen or resident of the U.5.. a partnership crganired or sxisting In the
L%, or any carparation, trust or other entity argandzed under the Lws of or edsting in the US; [I} person or entlty resident
or domicled in the Cayenan lshands (eacleding any okject of o choriable st of pewer or an exerepied of non-resident
Cwyman Idands compary); () unable to sshscribe for or kold Units without viclsting applicable laws, or (b 3 cstodian,
nemmines, of trustee for any person, comporatian or entty described in 1) to (iE] sbowe.

The: Banager may determine to bae one of more classes of Units of the Serles Trust withowt prioe natice 1o or written
womwient of the Unitholies.

Al af the net sseets attibutable 1o ¥ Monthly Distribution Clss Units, 1Y Semi-nnual DEtdbution Class Units Clasy,

USD Monthly Distribution Clss Unlts and USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units, are held by two nomines account
Unihhokiers,
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DOUBLELNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

WITS {eomtinuaed |

IFY Mcathly 1Y Sami-Annugl LISEy hlollhi by B D Semi- Anuil

Bistrigation Cless Gistriblice Class Distribulics Chss Distibution Class, Tefal Sares Trust
Falarc s February 28 3030 USD RIETESY  USD ALISEIST  USD  LIARESY WSO BMESIE  USD SAEVLLID

Sutrieriptisr during the e 19,73 LanG ok 387 Rlarsal 1LEI %19
Fedempticra during the yeaw (5383080 [103.530) (245,283 (B EFEEE ) i, 155,155
Ekitributi ot 141,310 [aar v (27.TR [ FH (E107)
Mot |decreasepinoreace I nel assels

resulting from operatans TErr Rl [Gn5s 38e ek 2 irages 5517 A

Miet diets at Februdey 19, 3024 AGp GRTag3e.  ASD3A0ANSE ASD J9TALE. ASD ISITLND.  USD SHISRAR

Mok of Lindts in issue ot

Frebruany 38, 2003 53,380 FIT A% 183134 0, S5 149,710
Wil s durieg the year 3,331 54,850 110 931,283 w0154
Unity rdcpe md during Chi yiar a1y {1.936) = 4 ] [iaraia} £irlAael)
Mumber of Unlty A Hiue o

February 29, 3004 ALENE TEOLIA0 _ 114edn LITO9%Y FRITTEE]
Wl Apiit Valoe per Unit o

Fetruary i, 2024 yier 7.0 o Shad uig 13 Jio p &

Swbscriptions for Units

Y Monthiy Distribution Class Units and #Y Semi-annual Distribution Class Undts were first bsoed at an initis] sswee price
of AP 100000 ped Undt, The eminimum innis sebseription for (Y Meathly Distribation Class Units and 1PV Sedni-Annasl
DHstriburtion Class Lnls per subscriber s 1 Unk or more, and in multiples of 1 Units theneafter.

LD Monthly Dastribution (lass Unbs and USD SembAnnual Distribution Class Undts were first lsued 21 an inktial sue price
of S0 10,00 per Unilt The mirimum inltial subscription for USD Monthly Distribution Class Unis and USD Seni-Annasl
Distribunian Class Units per sulbscriber s 10 Undts or more, and in mubigles of 1 Unlt thereatter,

The Manager may wabe or change the mindmum initial and addinional subscription amounts set forth above in Its sole
discretion from time to time.

Uinft Redemptions

The Series Trust recogrizes redemptions i sccordance with the antheriative guidance en distinguishing Babilites from
equity, Redemptions, whether expressed as Unlted Stazes Dollar, Japanese ¥en or Undts, ane recognized as Rabilitles when
each af the Japsnese Yen and United S1a124 Dallar Liniz amounts requested In the redemptisn notice becames fxed, which
generally may coowr either a1 the time of the recedps of the meotier, or on the last day of a flscal year, depending cn the
natuire of the request. As a result, redemptions paid after the end of the year, but based upon year end net assets ane
reflected as redemptions payable at February 79, 2024, There were USD 8,522 of redemptions payable for Japanese Yen
Units and USD 15,346 of redermptions payable for United 5tates Dollar Units a3 ot Febrosry 29, 2004 included as Payshle
far Units redesmed in the Staterrent of Assets and Liakdlies,

Repurchose of Units

Units may be repurchased at the cption of Unithalders cn each Repurchase Day (each business day, commenting on March
30, 2017, or such other day or days as the Manager may from time to time determine Inresped of the Serles Trust asoa
[*waksation Day" 1)

Untthalders wishing to have Units repusrchased must send a completed Repurchise Notics 1o the Distributors so a5 tobe
recetved by the Distributors na later than 300 g, (Tokyo tene) on the relevant Repurchase Day, The Ditribuzars will
send the completed Repurchase Hotices 1a the Sub-Administrator by na bater than 6:00 par. (Tokyo time] on the relevant
Repurthase Day or by such ather time as the Sub-Adminlstraton may i any particular cate determine.,

If the refewant Feparchase Notice |s not received by the Sub-Adminlstrator by the relevant time, the Repurdhase Natios will
b heeld over il the et following Repuechase Day after the Repurchase Netice s received and Units will then ke
redeemed at the relevant repurchase price applicable on that Reporchase Day.

A Repurchase Motios, once gheen, §s imevocable.
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DOUBLELNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

WMITS {eomtinuaed)

Compulsary Redemption

In the ewent that the Trustee or the Manager shall determing that any Units of any dass of a Serles Trust are being held by
of far the bensfit of a person who bk not an Eligible Investor Tor such Series Trust of that such halding weuld case the
Trust or the Sevies Trust 1o be required 10 register, be subject to tax or violate the Laws of any jursdicticn, or f the Trustee
or the Manager has reason fodoubt the kegitimacy of the source of menies used 1o fund the subscription or purchase of
such Units, ar far whatever reason fwhich may nat be disclosed by the Trustes or the Manager 1o Unlthaldess) that the
Trustes or the Manager considers appropriate at its absclute discreticn having regard 1o the interesis of the Unitholders of
the relevant Class or the Unisholders of the Sedes Trust as o whale, then the Banager, after consultationwith the Trustes,
may direct the holder thereof to sell such Unlts withim 10 days and provide to the Trustes and the Manager evidenoe of
such sabe. failing which the Manager may redeem such Units,

Terminotion of the Serles Trost

Upon termination, the Manages will realize ol the asiens of the Series Trust, and alter payirg out of relaining sdequate
pravisicn for all labllkies properdy payable and retaining provision for the tosts of the termination, the Trustee shall
distribiute the proteeds of that realization 1o the Unitholders proponmionately to their respective interests i the Serie
Trust as af the date of termrimation of the Serles Trust,

Duseributions fo Linithalders

The Manager may, In B2 sol= discretion, declsre distribotions and na guarantes k made that these will takes place.
Bstribution will be declared on each Buiness Doy immedistely prior 0 the Ex-Dlstribution Date for I and UED
[Mstribution Class Undts or such other date or dates as the Manager may from time to ime determine in respect of the
Series Trast [ Distribution Record Date’] and cakowlated on the fifieenh (15ch] day of each maath for Moathly Disbnion
Claws Unlts and the fifteenth {15th] day of March and September of eadh year for Semi-Annual Blstribution Class Undis (i
suth day |5 not o Business Day, then on the Tallowing Business Day), or such ather date or dates in each menth 23 1he
Manages may from time 1o time determine in respect af the Seres Trost EBc-Distibutisn Date”). Dstrbution Pericd i 2
peviad cammending from the calendar day following the preceding Distribution Record Date and ending on and inclding
the Mstwitugtion Record Date, The ditributions will be paid on the relevant Distributian Payment Date, provided that such
amount [H any} declaned with respect to the relevant Class of Units in respect of the applicable Distribtion Period shall
only ke pald cut of the Series Trust's net income, realized and unreallzed capital gains and any distributable funds of the
Serles Trust attributable to such Class of Units as determined by the A

The declaration af distributions to Unkholders reduces the Class Level Nst Asset Value per Unlt without any corresponding
change In the number of (ass Leved Units per Unithalder. This resulbis in @ Unitholder's overall investment in the Series
Trust being reduced. In addition, any distributians during 8 Distributicn Period which sne in excess of the Serbss Toust's net
Increase Innet assets resulting from operations results na portion of the distribution being return of capitall

The amcunt of dissrbsions, if any, will Be determined by the Manager v its sole Siscretion, and no representation ar
puarantes ks mads that a distribution will be made in fespect of each or any Distribation Perlad,

Copolination

The Met Asset Value per Unit i caloulated for each Dealing Day [each Valuation Day, or suth ciher day or days as the
Klamager may fram time to Sime determine in respect of the Seres Trust), by dividing the difference inovalue between the
Series Trust's assets and labilivies (incleding acorued fees and expenses of the Serles Toust) by the number of Units
outstanding

Thee Towst Desedd stipulates that the number af Units 1o be Bsoed in the Series Trost shall be unlismized a5 the Manager dhall
determing and shall be without par vales.

DERIVATIVE FINAMCIAL INSTRUMEMNTS

Arcounting Standard Codification [ASC] 815-10-50 requires dischosures about der eathos instrumnents and hedging acthities.
It requires that the Series Trust dischose: a) how and why an entily uses derivatior instruenents, b} how deriatios
Instruments and related Bedged Rems are accounted Tor and of how derbvatiee instruments and related hedged (tems
affect on eminy's linargial position, financial perfonmance ard cash flows,

The: Series Trest ransscts fonward defivative Instruments primarily for hedging puposes with each instriment’s primany

risk exposure befng forsign exchange rik The farwand fareign currency exchange contracts beld by the Series Trest donot
quallfy as hedges for accounting purposes under the requirements of ASC 515,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [continued]

The fair value of these dervarhe: nstruments is induded s the Satement of Assets snd Liabilities with changes in fair
vl reflected as realized ginslosses) ar net chenge in unrealized appreciationf{de preciation) on dervates within the
Statement af Operations (Note 2.

Thes Sevhiees Trust may snfet into an Intemational Swaps and Derbeative Associstion, Inc. Master Agreement (1508 Master
Agreement™} with its counterparties in order 1o mitigate counterparty risk The BDA Master Agreement i typloally
negatiated by thie Series Trust and its counterpanties, containing the bidateral terms and conditions for all subsequeent
derbeative transactions. The 1504 Master Agreement allows for the netting of all amounts owed to or dwe from
cointerparty inte a single pet payment If & oredi evens or default should ooou,

The: Series Toust has elected 1o nat affser fair value recebvables and payables for dedeative contracts on the face of the
Statement of Awets and Liabilsies,

At Febnuary 29, 3024 the Seres Trust had entered info the following derlvathe assets by counterparty net of amownts
available far offset under a Master Netting Agreement ["MNA™) and net af any collateral recebed by the Serkes Trust:

Derivaitive Ak Derivathes Non-cash Cash Bk Amowst of

Countengarty Subject to o WA Avalable for Difsel G Reoebed Colatenl Remived  Dativathoe Assels!
Erowe Brothers Harinan 800, USD 1 uso [2§ UsSD - U - usn -
Tl FE XY 123} = E AN
Total ] FIT T (550 LBD - o — LBg L]

At February 29, 2024 the Series Trust hod enteded inta the follewing desbative Babilites by counterpary net af amounts
arvailable for offaet under a MNA and net of ahy collatens pledged by the Seies Trust:

Hel Ameuniol

Dervativn Ushilliss  Owrivitioes Non-cnd Cash Drrivetive
Countenpaty Subjert to o M Avalible e Dot Collatnrsl Pladgnd  Collateral Pledgad Liakd !
Ergwm Broteers Haerean 800, USDH 3 uUsh (AR ) - USk = s 1
CITI M phre] [eri]] - - =
Total [ 508 LD (BT - R — WRD 71
U a e il b roed am ount recehall e pay s bie Teom the counter party i the avert of delast
At Febnuary 29, 3024 the Serles Trust had entered into the following derhvadives:
Derivathas Slatrmant Salement
Mt Areomnted for i of Assets and of Assety and
il g, Bt rass £015 Hl_m‘m Fair Valus I.ilhllhlfﬁlh (Farir 'l
Forwirdlonsign cermency - Uneeallped sppreciation Linnegliped cegreci stian
enchargs contrcky on farwird forsgn on Torward fareign
[Cusrency i) CuT By eachange [ 233091 currency sachungs [ 5,396}

mnkracks eardracty

The eHect of derhathe Instromeents on the: Statement of Operations for the year snded Febnaary 29, 1024:

Location of Eoalimd Approdition or
Dioriv sthves Hot Ascountad Gaimor jLow] Gainor o] [Daprodetica) ca
Ted 34 Hisdghng i ants o Dbt e o e rivatives D risativies
okt realleediosses on forwaedilonesgn
Ferward foreigneurrency ounarCy sxchargs conbracty
exchangs contrachy chenge lmunnealiped spgredation on forwand
{Currery Kisk Tareign crrency eachange comracts usg [7AA0L15])  USD TB3HL

WUMNAGIMENT FEES

The Mansger recebees, oot of the sssets of the Series Trast, a meanagement fee of & total up 1o 06E% per snnum (0U03%
per annum In respect of fee for the Manages, 0.25% per annum of the Net Asset Value up 1o USD 400 millicn and 0.21%
pi anmem af the Net Asiet Value over USD 400 million in respect of fee for the lnvestiment Manager, and 0.40% pi
annm af the Met Asset Valope up to USE 400 millicon and 0,358 per annum of the Met Assel Value over USD 400 milion in
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DOUBLELNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

UM AGEMENT FEES [continued]

respect of fee for the Sub-lmestment Manager] of the Net Adset Value accreed on, snd calulated as oy, each Valustion
[ray and payable manthly in arrears. inaddition, the Manager alss reimburses, cut of the assets of the Series Trust, for any
expaniies Inturred by [2in the proper perfoomance of By povwers and ditkess as pemired under the Masies Trust Deed
During the year ended February 29, 7024, the Manager eamned fees of USD 384,799, of which USD 28,653 ts sl
out tanding 25 of February 29, 2024,

Thes Manager pays the fees of the Investrment Manager out of its fees. The nvestment Manager Is responsible for payving
the fees of the Subdnvesiment Manager and any of the Investment Manages's delegates of other panies appainied by the
Inveestment kanager to perfonm its functions in respect of the Serfes Trost.

CUSTODMAN AND SUIB-ADNYNISTRATOR'S FEES

The Custedian shd Sub-Adreinistralor receives a oustody fee caliulated snd paid mehthly based on towl assets and
trancactian velume,

The Custodian and Sub-Adminismator eecebees, out of the assets of the Serbes Trest, an adminkstration fee [Including
tranafer agent fee) caltulated based on the Met Adset Value a5 at each Valuation Day ot the Tollowing annwal rate:

- BT % up 1o {and inchading) WSEF 250 millicn;

- 0L0E% up to {and Including) WSSO0 milion;

- 5% aver USD SO0 milicn,

Such sdmindsration fee s payable monthly In smears, and subject to the minimum amsneal fee of USD 600000 The
Cusiodian and Sub-Adminbirator abo recebves, out of the assets of the Serles Trust, fees for comency adminkstration and
exeCiflicn serdces ot the rote of 0.05% per annem of the Net Asser Value of the relevant Unit Class, subject to the
minimam annual fee of USD 55,000 In addiion, the Custadian and Sub- Admindstrator receles customany salekeeping foes
and transaction charges. All awt-of pocke expenses af the Custodian and Sub-Administrstor are borne by the Sedss Trust,
During the year ended Felruary 29, 2024, the Custodian and Sulb-Administrater ramed fees of USD 73310, of which USD
12431 |s <1ill autstanding as of Februang 29, 2024,

TRUSTEE FEES

The Trsstee recedes, oot of the sssets of the Series Trust, o combined fee ot the rate of RO1S% per anoum of the Net
Asaet Value arcnued on, and cakuolated as at each Valuation Bay and payable guartedy In arrears, subject to a minimum
annual fee of USE 15,000, During the year ended Februany 23, 2034, the Tostee ramed fees of WSD 15,043, of which USD
TA74 s aill putstanding as of Felbruary 79, 1004,

AGENT COMPANY'S FEES

The: Agent Comgpany receives, out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee at the e of 0.02% per annum of the Net Asset
Walue aconued on, and caloulbied as at, each valuation Day and payable quanierly in arrears, During the year ended
Febauary 28, 2024, the Agent Company earned fees of USD 10,318, of which USD 1,921 Is s18l cunstanding as of Febraary
29, ki,

DETRIBUTOR'S FEES

The: Distributars recebve, out of the sssets of the Series Trust, a fee ot the rate of 0.60% per anfuem af The Net Asset Value
scrued on, and caloulated as ot eath Valustion Day snd payable quarierdy in sarrears. During the year ended February 29,
2024, the Distributors earmed fees of USD 339538, of which USD 56,659 ks still outstanding as of February 19, 2024,

OTHLR FELS AND EXFENSDS

The costs and expenses In connection with the establishment of the Serfes Trust and the offering of the Units, together
with the establishment of the Trust, inchading the costs amd espenses of prepaning omd printing any prospedtes of
explamatory brochures required, were estimated at laumch o amount fo spprodmately VS0 140,000, Such msts and
expanies will be amoniked within the first e (5) financal years of the Series Toust undess the Trustes deciles that some
oiher method shall be applied. The Admbnistrator reoeives USD 1,500 per annem for FATCA / GRS compllance services.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

FINAMCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT

The Sevbes Trust's activiiies expose I 1o 8 vaniety of financial rsks: marker ek fncliding price risk, intenes rate risk, snd
wurrempy riik], omedis risk and liquidity risk.

Mfark et Risk
All ineestments present a rivk of loss of copital. The Investment Manager modenates this risk through a careful selection of
srcur ks and other financial instroments,

The Seviies Trsst's Investment management process is described in Nete 1 The primary determinant of the Sebes Trust's
abifity 1o meet [tz objectie of mid 1o long team capital appreciation while paming Income & dependent on the
performance of the investment in the residential and comenerclal mongage-backed securities, The Serles Trust's coerall
market pasitions are monltored on a dally basls by the Serles Trust's iovestment Manager.

The vakee af the Series Trast's investments is atfected by o nurber of factors, including but mat liemited 1o, changes in the
wider economy, financial amd currency markets, foreign cumrency euchange rates. Interest rate movements and onedit
ratings of debt issuers. The Series Trust may enter inta forward Torelgn currency exchange contracts which 1o varying
degre-o5 represent 3 macket risk in pacess of the amount reflected on the Serles Trost's Statement of Assets and Linbllides.
The: natianal amount of the contract represents the extent of the Serles Trusts panticipation in these financial instruments.
elamket risks assodated with axch contracts arke due to the possible movements in farelgn curency eachange rates
unierling these insiraments,

Gaher market and credin fisks inclugde the pessibllity thas there may be an illiguid market for the conteacts, that the change
In the valee of the contract may nat directly comelbte with changes In the wlue of the underhying currencies or that the
ot eqparty 1o a forward contract defaults on s abligadon 1o perfoem under the terms of the contract, The Series Trust's
exposure to loss dur o countenparty non-performance on open futures, forward foreign currency eschange, seap and
opticns contrss i limited to the unreaked sppredintion inherent in such financal instrurments which are recognined in
the Statement af Assets and Liabilithes.

Interest Rate Ridk

The Serles Trost's exposure to changes ininterest rates relates primardly 10 the Serfes Trosts investrenas in debit seouritles
condracts, Interest rase Tluctuations may also atfect the Tair value and pricing of dedivative instruments purchased or sold
shont by the Sexdes Trust. The Irestment Managesr continuowsby monhors the Serles Trust's exposre fo interest rate risdk
and the Serles Trust's owverall Interest senalthvity on a regular basls.

Many fnancisl instrurments used a fleating rate based on the London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR"), the offered rate ot
which major intemnational banks can obiakn wholesale, unserured funding. LIBOR was a sipnificant facior in dedermining
the Sedbs Trust's payenent chligations inder o dedivative rvedament, the cost of financing 1o the Series Trust of an
Investment’s value or return 1o the Serkes Tisst, and was used in other ways that affected the Series Trust's Investment
performance. The Unlted Kingdam's Finsnclal Condwect Authodity phased cut of L0 Although many LIBOR rates wene
phased cut by the end of 2021, a selection of widely wsed USD LUBOR rates continued 10 be published through June 2023 iIn
order 1o asshst with the tronsition. The Sedies Trost was exposed to financial instruments tied to UBOR to determine
payment chligations, financing teems, hedging strategies of investreent valee The transition process away from LIBOR and
any intneased wolatility and | liquidity in markets for, and redouced effectivensss of new hedges placed againat, instrements
whase terms previcusly inthaded LIBDR were nat material 1o the Series Trust

Aisset-bocked scunitie fovestment Rk

Asget-backed securities Irvestrent have the risk that barrowers may default on the abligations that undedis the aset-
backed security and that, during periods of falling Intevest rates, asset-backed sequrities may be called or prepald, which
may fesult nothe Serles Trust having 1o reinvest proceeds in ather Investments at a lower interest rate, snd the ridk tha
the imnpadrmant of the walae of the collateral enderhyving a security inowhich the Series Trust Irmeests (doe, for exarmple, to
nanepaymnent of loans ) will result Inoa reduction in the value of the security.

Concentrotion Risk

The Series Toust may Irvest substantialy in bonds bsued by WS, spencies b sccordance with its principal investment
strategies. Becauwse such secaritles are bswed by a limbted number of govermment agendes, any actual or potendlal
disrupion 1o those apencies could present a ik 1o the Series Trust Fannle Mae and Freddie Mac, which are athes
povermnment-sponaoned lsoers of mortgage-badk securizles similar to those guaranteed by Ginnle Mae, suffered such a
disrugtion i the morgapge cisls af 2007 - 2008 snd were placid under federal consepvatorhip ot that time, Ginnle Mae
securhies, undikr those of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, are backed by the full faith and credis of the 1.5, government and
are subiject 1o the risks of U5, gavernment secwiities. Similar 1o other Bseers, changes 19 the financial condition or oredit
rating of the L5, government may cause the value of the Series Trust's espasure to U5, agencles seourities 1o declins,
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DOUBLELNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

FINAMECIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [continued)

Martgoge-bocked feconitias Bk

Mortgage-backed securlties represent interests in “pook® of mortgages and are subject to credhlt, Intemest rate,
prepayment and ectension risk. Momgage-backed securities resct differently to changes in interest rates than ether bonds
and the prices of mongage-backed secunhies may reflect adverse econcmic and markst conditions. Small mavements in
Interest rates {both increases and decreases] may quickly and significantly reduce the value of certain mengage backed
secunrhies. Defaoht or bankruptoy of a counterpany to a to-be-announced transaction would expose the Sedliss Trust 1o
passible loss

Mortgogeeiotedond Other Acset-Booked Securities Ris

The Serles Trust may bnvest In mortgage-related and other ssset-backed seourities that directly or ndirectly represent a
panticipatian in, of ae secured by and payable fram, loans on real pregerty, Mongagereloed seourities are created from
pocks of resdential or commerclal mortgage kboans, including mortgage bans made by savings and loan institutions,
moatgage bankers, commerrial banks and others, Thess securities provide 2 monthly payment which conskits of bath
Imerest and principal. Interest may be detesmined by fioed or adjustakie rotes. The rate of prepayments an whderying
morigagss will affect the price and volatility of a mongage-related security. and may have ihe effect of shonendng or
extending the efecttve duration of the security relathve to what was anticlpsted at the time of purchase. The timely
payment af principal and knterest of certain mortgage-refated securities Is guarantesd with the full falth and oredit of the
Wi Government. Pook created and guaranteed by non-gowermmental bsseers, induding  government -spansored
carparaticns, may be supponed by variows Torms of insurance or guarantess, but there can be no assurance that private
Insuress or guarantors can meet thelr chllgations under the | e policles or g anrang ts. Many of the
risks of Ivvesting in morgage-related securties secured by cormmercizl mongepe loans reflect the effects of local and
oaher econcamic conditizas on real estate markets, the abfity of tenamis to make lease payments, and the ability of a
property 1o attract and refaln tenands.

Cralit Risk

Cre-dit risk represents the potential loss that the Sevies Trust wouwld incur if the countenpanties or lssuers of debit seourities
failed to perfonm pursuant 10 the terms aof thelr obligations 1o the Sedes Trust Far eschonge-traded contracts, the
exchangs acts as the counterparty 10 specdiic transactioes and, therefore, bears the sk of delbery 1o and from
conmnterparties of specific posklons. The Seriss Trust's management daes nat consider that oredht rhik relsted to open
derivative contracts will have materls] adverse effect on the financial conditien af the Sevies Trast,

Althaugh the Manager monbiors the Custodian snd believes It 1o ke an apprepriate custodian, there s no guarantee than
this or any custodian that she Series Trust may use from time to time, will nat become insobent, which could lead to losses
far thes Saries Trast,

while both the U5, Bankrupscy Code and the Securlties Investor Protection Act of 1970 serk fo protect cosiomer property
In the event af & fallure, inschvency or Equidation of an institation, there B no cenainty that, in the svent of a fallure of an
Instituticn that has custody of Serkes Trust assets, the Series Trust would not incur Insses due 1o 185 assets being unavadlzhle
for a peried of time, ulimately less than full recovery of 23 assets, or bathe Becawse all of the Seres Trust's cash s In
wustody with a dngle instiRution, sch ksses could be dgnificant and could materlally impair the ability of the Series Trost
e ahieve Es invesiment chiecthe, The Serdes Trust b sulbject to credit risk 0o thee extent that this instimnizn may be
umakble 1a fulflll ks obligations to repay amaunts cwed.

big ity Risk
Inviestors should be aware that the valie of Undis might Tall a5 wel a5 fise. Investment in thie Series Trust imalves & degres
of risk, there can be no assurance that the Serles Trust's imeestment ohjecthve will by achlieved,

The: Series Trust b exposed to dally repurchase of its Units but management belisves that the Serdes Trust has sufliclent
resoimces to meet the present and foresesable needs of its business operations and, I necessary, the Bquidity 1o fund
repurchases and achieve a market position appropriately reflecting a smaller capital base. This position B menitcred
tontinually by managesment 1o ensure that the Sexies Trust b the abllity 10 meet its abligations.

At Febrsary 74, 2004, substandally ol the nvestments of the Series Trost were traded in the over-the-counter market.

Currency Risk

The Seeies Toust holds monetary and Aon-monetary ovsets and inturs monetany and non-monetary lak e depominated
in currencies athier tham LSO, the Functianad Currency. 12 is therefare expased 1o currency fidk, as the valis of the assets
and liabilitks denominated in other cusrencies (*non-USD%) will fluctuste dus to changes in exchange rates. The Series
Trust may enter into currency hedging transactions fram teme 1o time in oeder 1o lmit It exposure o currency rid, The
Iveestm et b anager monitors the Serfes Trst's comency sxposuns on a daily basls.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

COMMITRIENTS AND COMNTINGEMNCIES

In the narmal course of budness, the Trustee on behal! of the Series Trust may enter into contracts that conain a variety
of reprsentations and warrantles and which provide general indemnifications, The general indemnPlcations apply nat andy
1 the emtent such repredentations and warmanties are wntroe but alss may cover third parties such as the Series Trusts
Adminktratoy, Auditor or Investmeent Manager for dalms related to the services performed for the Sevles Trust, The
Trustee™s madmurn expasure under any such srangoments i unknawn, o3 expaure andy arbies 1o the exlent fut e claiims
that have nat yet ooturred are made against the Trustee, However, based on raperience, the Trustes expects the sk of
lerss to b reanatie

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management perfoimed o subseqieen events review up 1o June 7, 2024, which s the daote the financal statements were
avallable 1o be lsmed.

Effective March 1, 2004 through June 7, 2024, there were subsoriptions of USD 350 in respect of JPY Monthly Disribution
Cless gnd there were subsiriptions of USD 6,898 bn respect of IPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class, there were subscriptions
of LSO 1,452 in respect of USD Monthly Distributien Class, there were subsoriptions of LSD 19,5038 In respect of USD Semi-
Annual Distribution Class,

Effective March 1, 2024 through une ¥, 3024, theve were redemptions af USD 365430 in respect af 1P Manthly
Disteibuntian Class and thers were redenpiians of USD 1461231 n respect of JPY Semi-Arnual Disribution Class, thene
were na redemptions In respect of US0 Monthly Distribution Cass, there were redemptions of USD 15,368 In respect of
S0 Semi-Annual Distriburize Class,

Theere were distributions of USD 5.57% n respect of JPY Monthly Distribution Cass, There were distributions of USD
208, 797 bn respect of JPY Seeni-Annuad Distributicn Class, There were distritnnians of USD 6 87T in respect o USD Maonthly
Distribution Class. There were distributions of USD 108,844 in respect of USD Seod-Annual Déstribution Olass.

Theere are ne other sigrifizant eveets to report as they relate 1o the Series Trust.

109/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 28
2023 28
61,364,631 54,722,660 8,814,179
1,909,034 307,488
8,020 1,292
6,033 972
294,990 47,514
27,719 4,465
56,968,456 9,175,909
1,309,971 210,997
8,855 1,426
104,629 16,853
33,549 5,404
27,935 4,499
9,639 1,553
9,526 1,534
6,644 1,070
3,719 599
30 5
578,535 93,185
4,311 694
2,097,343 337,819
54,871,113 8,838,090
68,902,169 11,098,072
(14,031,056) (2,259,982)
54,871,113 8,838,090
406,964,652
53,589 7,594
5,714,622,038
717,435 7,965
1,183,859
143,134 8.27 1,332
8,746,633
985,552 8.87 1,429

161.07
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2023 28

1,978,897 318,741
1,978,897 318,741
281,436 45,331
248,325 39,998
97,083 15,637
38,624 6,221
15,001 2,416
10,001 1,611
8,278 1,333
73,792 11,886
772,540 124,433
1,206,357 194,308
(1,989,948) (320,521)
(5,273,636) (849,425)
(7,263,584) (1,169,945)
(4,366,829) (703,365)
(456,057) (73,457)
(4,822,886) (776,822)
(12,086,470) (1,946,768)
(10,880,113) (1,752,460)

161.07
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2023 28

1,206,357 194,308
(7,263,584) (1,169,945)
(4,822,886) (776,822)
(10,880,113) (1,752,460)
(50,541) (8,141)
(211,535) (34,072)
(42,982) (6,923)
(127,638) (20,559)
(432,696) (69,694)
66 4,052 653
382,562 22,691,594 3,654,935
1,269 11,085 1,785
89,563 810,524 130,551
5,038 (280,656) (45,205)
5,513 (376,083) (60,576)
100,173 (887,652) (142,974)
225,161 (2,075,996) (334,381)
19,896,868 3,204,789
8,584,059 1,382,634
46,287,054 7,455,456
54,871,113 8,838,090

161.07
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2023 28
2017
2012 10 15
2021 a CIMA
2017 30
50
NRSRO
NRSRO
UFJ
UFJ SMBC
FASB ASC

946
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GAAP
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GAAP
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2023 28

2023 28
54,722,660 54,722,660
27,719 27,719
54,750,379 54,750,379

2023 28
578,535 578,535
578,535 578,535

2023 28
FASB ASC 740

50

115/214



58,457
2,515,750
18,265,614
2023 28
)
(
2022 28
2023 28
2022 28
2023 28
2023 28

)

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

401
35
30 790,762
38
29 4,487,780
)
)
) )
4,632,449 27,891,197 2,334,065 11,429,343 46,287,054
4,052 22,691,594 11,085 810,524 23,517,255
(280,656)  (376,083) (887,652)  (2,075,996)  (3.620,387)
(50,541)  (211,535) (42,982) (127,638) (432,696)
(1,317,640) (8,042,216) (230,657)  (1,289,600) (10,880,113)
2,987,664 41,952,957 1,183,859 8,746,633 54,871,113
58,561 340,386 242,038 1,121,150 1,762,135
66 382,562 1,269 89,563 473,460
(5,038) (5,513) (100,173) (225,161) (335,885)
53,589 717,435 143,134 985,552 1,899,710
55.75 58.48 8.27 8.87
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10,000

10.00

2023 28
28 8,855

30
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2023 28

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.

CITI PB

2023 28

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
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1SDA
1SDA

MNA
@
205 D) 203
27,514 (27,514)
27,719 (27,516) 203
MNA
MNA
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2 @
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CITI PB 578,533 (27,514) 551,019
578,535 (27,516) 551,019
(€Y)
2023 28
27,719 (578,535)
2023 28
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0.68
0.40
27,935
0.07
0.06
0.05
0.05
2023 28
28 3,719

2.5
2.5

0.03

0.22

2023

28

0.35

60,000

50,000

2023
33,549

15,000
15,001

28

2023

2023

28

28
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0.015
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104,629

2023

FATCA/CRS
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COVID-19
12
13
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LIBOR
LIBOR 2021
LIBOR 2023
LIBOR

LIBOR

190,868
1,457 8,496

533,668

579,068
216,834

56,960
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMEMT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
February 28, 2023

[Expressed in United States Dallar, unless otherwise indicated)
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMEMT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2023
{Expressed in United States Dallar)
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMEMT OF CHAMGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023
|Expressed in United States Dallar)
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For thi Year Ended February 28, 2023

CRGAMIZATION

Doubdel e Toral Return Furd {the “Semies Trust®) is & series trest of the Nikke AM OFshore Funds, 2r open-ended uri
trust estabdlished by o supplesrental trost deed dated Februsry 8, 3007 (the “Soppemertsl Trus! Deed ™), under the liws of
the Cinran |dlands, Nikko AM Offthode Fursds was established by & master tius! deed dated October 15, 2012 [tha
“MAsster Trust Deed™), under the laws of the Cayman Blands and is Beensed with the Capman idands Monetary Authority
P s bnt 40 section 4 1)in] of the Mutual Fusch Act {2021 Revision]. The Semes Tiust awrmenced operations an Mardh 30,
201

The Series Trust's assets are managed on a diy-to-dey badis by Nikke AN Global Cayman Limited {the “Manager® ). The
Manager deegates II'HC!-!'I'I‘.'l" I'ﬂlw dufied 10 Ak Astet Managedrent Co., LEel, (the “irsettmert MaraperT].
Thee Imeestmert Manager d wr? management dufies o Coubletine Capital LP, [the “Sub-investment

Manager L The s it triion -ﬂ 'Il'll Series Trust it dedegaied to Brown Brothers Horeman & Co. [the “Custedian™ and
“Sub-Administrator”), aflimibed partnership onganined under the lows of the State of Mew York

The imvestment objective of the Series Trug i to adhieve 3 mid o long term total retunn through income and capital
sppeecistion. Under noomal droumdtances, the Senes Toost will ireest over 5006 of it ned asdet in residential and
commercial mortgage-badcked securities, actively allocated between agency and non-agincy securities.

These immesiments may include mongage-backed securities of any maturity or type, induding those guaranteed by, or
ipcured by collateral that is gurénteed by, the Unfed States gowdmment, 16 agendes, intfrumertalifies o sponioded
corporations, and privately Bsued morigege-backed seourities rated a1 the tere of purchase A3 or highes by Moady's or
i ar bigher by S&P or of an equivalent rating by any other natiorally recogriced statistical rating organization {"NRSRO™)
that R B fecagninsd By the LS, Sesuditied ond Exshange Comfanision of uirated sensities that s detefimirsd by the
Irmestment Marager o its delegates to be of comparable quality. These irvestments abo indude, among others, U5
Geowerrment mortgage pass-ibhrough securities, collateraliced morgage obligations, mullicss pass-through securities,
private mortgage pais-through securities.

The Series Trust may 2lso imvest in short teom imvestments, such a3 notes issued by WS government agendes, and bonads,
disht securitied prod otber ficed inoome Bt urents isued by LS. genmnmental of private-iecior entitied, of other piset-
backed obligations, collateralized lban obigations, and obligations of the WS gowmmerd and Bs agendies,
instrumertalities and iponiored conpora tions.

The Series Trust mray ireest in bonds of any oredit guality, induding thote thot are at the time of ireestment urreted or
rited B8+ of lower by SEP or Bal of lower by Moody's of of an equivalent rating by any other NRSRO, Bonds and fixed
incoeme irstruments rated bedow investmen grade, o such instroments et are vnrated and determined by 1he
Irreistimern Marager of its deliegates to be of comparable quality, are Fagh vield, bigh risk bonds, commonby known as ‘unk
bords’. The Series Trost may imvest up to 2 third of its net atsets in junk bonds, bank kbans and assigrements that are either
reted below investment grace of ore urrated but detenmined by the Imeestment Marager of its delegates 10 be of
womparable quality, and credit deficlt vwaps of companies in the high yidd urbasre

The Series Trust may imvest 3 portion of Bs ret aswels in inverse floater securities angd inferesi-only ard principal-onky
secLaities,

Under the termm of the Supplerantal Tiesd Deed and the Master Trust Deed, FirstCaribbean Intemationsl Bark snd Trust
Company [Cayman ) Lirsited [Uhe “Trostee” and the =Admnistrator” ) is named os Trustes of the Series Toust,

The Menager sppoirted Mitsubhhi UFl Morgan Stanley Seorities Co., Lid to act as Agent Compary (the “Agert
Company”~] and the Manager appawnted Mitsubishi UF) Morgan Stankey Securities Co., 114, and SMBC Trust Bank Ui, 1o act
as Distributors {the “Citributors™) of Unitsin Japan.

SUTAMARY OF SIGMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Ther Sevies Trust s &n brvestenent company that follows the sccourding and reporting guidance in FASE Accounting
Standards Codification 946,

L of Estimoles

The srcompanying finandial statements have besn prepared in actordarce with scoounting principle: generally acoepted in
the United 5tates of Americas ["LLS GAAF®], The preparation of firendal statement s in accordance with U5, GAAP neguines
the Series Trust's management 1o make eitimates and assumptiors that affect the reported amowrts of assets and
Rabilties and disdosures of comtingent assets and Habilites at the cate of the financial statements and the reported
amounis of revenues and expenses duning the reporting period, Actual results, ncluding the ultimate amount realimed
upan the sale of Fair valaed irvestments, could diffier from those estimates and such ciflerences may b significant,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For thi Year Ended February 28, 2023

SURARUARY OF SIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [ontinund)

Boris of Accouniiag

Seourity and contractual trarsactions are recorded on a trade/contract-cate bask. interest income is recorced on an
effective yiekd basis, net of any applicable withhalding tax. inerest expense and other expendes ane recorded on an scorual
bash, Realired gains and losses from security transactions are computed on the basis of the average cost of the securities
sold or covered, Changes in the vahuation of invistmems ame rerorded in the Statement of Operatiors as unrealized
Appreciation or depredation

Wik tion of imesmenis

Bords and other debt teourities, incleding restricied securities (other than shost-term obligations but ircluding lRied
issues) are fair vabeed 4 thesr last sale price in the principal market in which such securities are nogmally traded, on the
bask of wiuations fumished by a pricing service, use of which has been approved by the imaestment Manager, or if no sale
has peourred, the bid price on the valuation date as proviced by brokers who are rmarket makers in the securisies. All debs
securities with bess than 12 months s maturity date, in prirciple shall be fair valued wing an amorized cost effected by an
effective yield accumulated femontization method 1o thew maturity cate with sdjusiments based on cormparisan with
market prices a recuired.

In accordance with the authorizative guidance on falr value messuroments and disclosuees urder LLS, GAAR, the Semes
Trust disdloses the Tar value of its imvestments in o hieraschy that prioitizes 1he inputs 1o valiation technigues wsed to
measure the fair value, The hisranchy gives the highest prority toovalumions besed upon unadiusied guoted prices in active
markets for idenrtical assets of Babalitees {Level 1 messurament] snd the Bwest pricdity to veluations based upon
unabservable inputs that ane significant 1o the valustion [Level 3 measurements). The guidance establishes thres levels of
the: fai value hisrarchy as follows

= Level 1 = impats that reflect unsdjosted qusded prices i acthve markets for idertical Bvestments that the Sefies
Trust bas the ability to access &t the messunemend date;

#  Level 2 = irputs other tham guoted prices that are significant and observable for the asset o liablity either
direcily of indirectly, inchuding nputs in markes that are not considensd to be sctive

& Leved 3 = ingess that are significant ard unclserable.

Impasis are wsed i applying the varkous valation technicues and broadly refer 10 the asmmptions that market paniclipants
e to mabe valhuation dedidsions, induding avsumption: about risk. mputs may include price information, specific and broad
onechit dits, lguicity s1atistics, and other factars, A fnancal ics trumert™s livel within the fair value Ferarcny B bdied vpon
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair valuee messunement. However, the determination of what
ortitutes “pbasrvable” tecuires sigrificarm judgment by the Imnestment Maragier. The investment Mardger consicers
obs erable data to be market data which i readily svadlable, regularly distritested or vpdated, reliable and verifiable, not
propritasy, ond pravided by independent sources that are sctively invotved in the rebevant market, The categodcation of 3
financial irstrurment within the hierarchy is based upon the pridng trarsparency of the instnement and does not necessarnly
oorrespond 10 the mestmert Mansger's peroeived ik of that irstrument.

IFvestments whode values are bawsd on the quoted markeq prices in actine markes, and thetefone clssiSed within Lewel 1,
would incdude actively traded equities, cerlain LS, gowernment ard sovercign obligations, and certain asset-backed
securities and collateralized mortgage obligations. The Imeestment Manager would not adjust the quoted price for such
inslrumerds, even in siuations whene the Series Trust held a large position and a sele could reasonably impact the quoted
Pt

Irmeetments that trade in markets that are rot corsidered to be active, but ane wvalued bated on guoted market prices,
desler cuotations o altermitiee prcing sourced Sugported by obtervable inguts are dlessified within Level 2. These include
imestmun t-grade debt securities, short-term amvestments and forward foreign cumency exchange contracts and may ako
inchade certain ssed-becked seourities and collrteralized mortgage obligations. As Level 2 i i inchude posi

that are rot fraded wn acthe markets andfor are subject to trarsfer restrictions, wvahutions may be adpsied to reflect
iliguidity ardfor non-transferability, which are #ﬂ'ﬂl’ based on evalebde market infonmedtion.

Ipvesbments dassfied within Level 3 keve significent unobiervable mputs, 84 they would trade infrequenthy, Level 3
irstrumers would inchude certain asset-backed seourities and collateralived mortgage obligations. As obsarvable prices are
nat svallable for those seourities, the Seres Trust would use valuation technicues to dedve the fair vabue.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

SURARUARY OF SIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [ontinund)

Virluetion of imarsimenis fooatimued)
The inputs or methadology Lsed Tor valuing securities ane not necessarlly an Indication of the risk asodated with investing
i thvs e sEeurities,

The following table presents the firandal inst ruments cardied on the Statement of Avsets and Liabdlities by caption and by
level within the valuation hisrarchy as of February 28, H023 Further dawifiations of the financial Insiruments are
presented in the Portfolio of Immsiments,

Falr Vabus ot
Arcats 3t Falr Value Lavell Laval 2 Laveld Fabrusry 30, 2028
Fined ncoim e Secunties usn = s 54, TIZERD LE e = Lso 54, T3 EED
Fosward Fatagn Curancy
Enchurge Contracy = Pl - T
E LsD = LISCr 54 TEOL E‘? LD = LISD 5-1.'.‘% 37
Falr Value ot
Uishiigier 38 Fair Value Lavel 1 Lavul 3 Lawel 3 Fabruary 78, 2020
Forward Foragn Curency
Exthinps Cormricty L) - LED 5?_9.535 L] = LI5S0 5¥H, 535
Total [T = LD 515 L35 [ = [T 578,535

During the year ended February 28, 3033, there were no transfers in or out of Level 3. The Seres Trust's policy s to
diebermine keveling and avsess all tramsfiers a% at @ pear end date,

Foreign Currency Trarslation
Assets and Babilities held in currendies other than United States Dollar {(“US07 or 1he “Functional Curmency” ] are transtated
to the Furctional Currency 2t the rate of exchange prevailing at the financial statement date Income and expenses are
transkated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the date on which the income or expense is inqurned, Realized and
urrealized gains and lotses anising on fordgn currency tramsactions ane induded in the $atement of Operations in the
jpeviac in which they oocur,

Thi Serles Trust does rot isolate that ponion of the results of aperations resulting from changes in foreign exchange rates
on Ewestments from the fluctuations arising from chamges in marke? prices of securities helol Such fluctustions are
included with the net reslized and nrealiced gain of koss from imestmants,

Inpome Teses

Ungder the currgnt laws of the Cayman islands, there are no incomes, withholging, copitsl gains or other taxes payable by
the Series Trust in oertain juniscictions other than the Cayman Blands, foreign tasoes may be withheld at source on
divicends and infenest received by the Series Trest, Capital gairs derived by the Series Trust in such jurisdictions generally
will b exempt from foreign income or withholding taxes ot source. Thee Sedies Trust inbends to conduct its affaire such that
it il not be subject to ncome tax in any ursdiction, As a resul, ro provision for income taxes has been made in the
finarcial statements. Unithodders may be taoed on their proporionate share of the Senies Trust's fax basis income based
on thair indivicual cirourmstanoes,

Thie Series Trust follows the authoritative guidance on sccounting for ard disdosire of urcerfainty in tax positions
(Fimancial Arcounding Standards Boand {“FASE™) - Accounting Standards Cocification 740], which requires the Manager to
determine whether a 1ax position of the Serks Trust is more Biely than not 1o be sustained wpon examination by the
applicable tadng sutherity, induding resolution of any related appeals of litigation processes, based on the techrical
merits of the position, For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax benef recogniced in the
finarcial statements is neduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percemt Bkelihood of being realized upon
ultimate sestlement with the relevant taxing auihority, The Manager has delenmined that there is minimal or no efed on
the firancial statements beirg under this authceitative guidence,

Farwirrd Foreign Curntrcy Exthange Sonlrocts

Thee Series Trutt may erfer into forward foreign cumency mchange contracts 1o hedge agairet foreign ourrency eachange
rate risks on all or a portion of non-UAS cerominated imaestments or for efficlent portfolio management purposes, When
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For tha Year Ended February 28, 2023

SURARAARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUICIES [ontinund)

Forwird Fareign Cumency Exchange Conbrocts {rombisu ed)

ertering inte a forward forelgn currency excharge contract, the Series Trust agrees to receive or deliver a fixed quantity of
foreign currency for an agreed-upon price on an agreed future date. These contracts are valbued daily, and the Series Trust's
net equity theren, representing unrealized appeeciationf{depreciation] on the contracts as measuned by the difference
between the foraand forsign currency exchange rates at the dates of entry into the comracs and the forward rates at the
reparting cate, Is induded in the Statemen: of Assets and Labilities, Realined and wnrcaleed galns and losses ang inchucied
in the Statemert of Operations.

These instruments irvtee market risk, oredit risk, or both kirgds of risks, in excess of the amount recognized in the
Statemert of Assets and Liabilities. Risks arise from the possible inability of counterparties 10 mest the tenms of ther
comracts and from movemert in currency and seoumies values and imerest rabes. in addition to the Sas leved hedging,
thi Serins Trust had net reelized gain of USD 401 on B fonward foreign currency exchange conracts duging the year with an
meerage rotional of LSD 58,457 and an average tenm to maturity of 9 days. The Series Tnat bad net realized loss of USC
790,762 on 35 forward foreign oarency exchange contracts held at the J7Y Monthly Distribudion Class Hedged level duning
the year with an average notional of USG 2,515,750 and an average tem to maturity of 30 days. The Serfes Trust alvo hag
realized boss of USD 4,487,780 on 348 forward foreign currency exchange comacts held at the JPY Sers-Annual Disteibution
Class Hediged lewel dusing the year with an average notional of USD 18,265,614 and an average term to maturity of 39 days.

Witileall or substantally all of the assets of the Series Trust may be held in LS, Dollars, it B intenced for the Series Trust to
e imo hedgirg arrangements lor the banel of JPY Monthly Distribution Class Units and JBY Seri-Annial Distnbution
Class Urdfs, which are denominated in Yern, Those armargemenis will be to hedge against acverse movements of the
currensy of denomination of the et ments in the Senes Trus relative 1o Yen, Any profits, gains, loses, costs, ncome
and pxpenditure associated with such hedging arrangements will be borne by each class,

For the year ended February 28, 2023, the noticnal ssposure on the JFY Monthly Distributon Qass Undts and JPY Semi-
Anral Dastribution Class Lirits forward cutrancy exchange contracls approdmated the average pet 35ssels for eady des
being net long JPY and shorl USD. Open contracts a1 yesr end ane disclsed in the Fortfolio of imestments,

o aad Forergm Curreacy
Cashand foreign currency comprises all ourrency held with the Custodian, and ovemight and other short term placemonts
with ather financial insitutans.,

The met awsets of the Sefies Trust are dividied mnto JPY Meonthly Distribution Class Units, JPY Sesni-Amnual Distribution Class
Urits, U502 Mombily Distribation Class Units and USD Semi-Anmual Distribution Class Urits, The Units ane denominated in
Urited States Dollar and Japanese Yer. JFY Monthly Qistribution Clays Units, JPY Semisanmuad Bistribartion Class Units, WSS
Mot hly Cistribution Class Units and W50 Semi-Annual Distribution Cas Urits are saillable 1o an digible ivestor who is
any perion, corporation or entity which is not {§) a citizen or resident of the U, o parinership organined or esting in the
W5, of any corpofation, trust of other emity ofganized under tha laws of or saksting in the US; (8] person o entity eesicent
or comidgbed in the Cayman islands (exduding any ohject of a chartable trust or powses or an exempted or nonresicdend
Cayman klands companry]: {ill) unable 1o subscribe for or hold Uniss withouwt violating applicable laws, or (f] a custoddan,
nomines, or trustes for any person, conporation or entity described in i to {ii} above.,

The Mansgesr may determine 2o e one of mone dasses of Units of the Series Trust withow! prior rotice o or writien
corsent of the Lirithalders,

Al of thie pet assets attributable 1o JPY Morthly Distribution Class Units, JPY Semi-Anrual Distributeon Class Urits Class,

A0 Monthly Distribaution Class Units and U0 Seme-Annual Sistribotion Class Units, are beld by two nomines accound
Upithiddeds,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For tha Year Ended February 28, 2023
LIMITS [cantirused]
1PY Marthly 1P SemiBnrual USD Manthly USD SamiAnnual
Drerbagion Clace D trilution Claee Dirtribagion Clar Dietribation Clser  Tots Garies Trudt

Balance ot Februsry W, 2002 [ W FT ] [Tl N TR LD X354 085 D 114F8 8 LD 45 2HT5
Sub-sergamns dunrg the year 2052 77,651,594 ELOEE 810,524 T3,517.255
Redemgtioni dunng the e [ FE0,E56) |Fre0a%] (BETERT) [2075,736) (3810, 387
Cagtributions [50.541) (1555 (k2550 {H27.658) (432 596)
et i in net aeety

reulting from operations {LB1T840) e e d 1] [2N0EEY) {1, 2050t} (10 Bl £ 1Y
Bet Asmets st Februnry 18, 2023 LSO 08T 661 LED AL S83O57  LED 1 1EdESE S0 BTMEEIT  LED SLATL1LE
Bumber ol Lnfs o ime of

Fabrumry 28, 2022 5,581 240,06 142,038 1L131,050 L762 188
Uit s ipsioied dung the yoas 151 B|5R3 L X5 ES,563 AT 4ED
Ukruts redieem ed during the yew L5, 008) {5 513} (100.173) (225 161} [355.8A5)
o ber ol LnAg i | o

Fabruary 28, 2023 53, 59 137435 FLERED 55 552 LESR TI0
et Axoit Value par Linit al

Februmry 28, 3028 ush LLE T han uwsh & ush aa?
Subscriphions for Units

IP¥ Monthly Distribution Class Urits and 5PY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units were first isswed o1 an iritial issue price
of JFY 10000 per Unit, The minsmum irftial subscription for J7Y Monthly Distribution Class Units and JPY Semi-anral
Biztribution Clas Units per subscriber is 1 Unit or marce, and in multipled of 1 Units thereafier.

50 Mot by Cistribution Cless Urits and US0 Semi-annusl Cistribution Class Units wene firs issued at an initial issue price
of USD 10,00 per Urdt, The minkmum initlal svbacription for USC Momhly Distribution Class Units and USE Semi-Anmal
Gistribution Class Units per subscriber is 10 Urits or mone, and in mubiples of § Unit thereafter.

The Marsger may waive o change the minimum nitial and additional subscription amourts set forth abowe in its ol
discretion from fime 1o time.

Lénit Redemplon
Thee Series Trust recogrizes redermptions in accordance with the suthorizative guicenoe on cistingushing o bifities from
equity. Redemplions, whether expressed as United States Dollar, Japaese Yen or Units, ane recognized s Babilities when
each of the Japarese Yen and United States Dollar Link amounts requested in the redemption nofice becomes fioed, which
pererally may ocwr sther at the time of the receipt of the notice, or on the kst day of a fiscal year, depending on the
nature of the reguest. As a result, recdemptions pald afier the end of the year, but baed vpon year end net assets ane
reflected a5 redamplions payable af February 28, 223 There were USD 8855 for Urited States Oollar Units of
recemptions payable a5 at February 38, X033 included as Fayable for Units redeemed in the S2atement of Assets and
Liakbilities.

Repurthase af Units

Urits mary be repunchased a1 the option of Unitholders on each Repurchase Cay {sach busiress day, commencing on March
a0, 1017, or such other day or days &5 the Manager may from time (o0 time determine in respect of the Series Trst alo a2
(“vabuation Dy ).

Urithodders wishing to have Uit s repurchased must send a completed Repurchase Notice to the Distribuiors 52 a5 1o be
received by the Distributors no later than 300 pom. {Tolyo time) on the relevant Repurdhase Doy, The Ciestributors will
sentdd the completed Repurnchase Notices 1o the Sub-Adeinistratos by no later than E500 pur, { Tokyo time) on the nelevan
Repurchase Day or by such other time as the Sub-Administrator may in any particular case determine.

I the: relevant Bnpurdhase hotice is not recedved by the Sube-Administrator by the relevant time, the Arpunchase Motice will
be bld over Lntil the pext iollowing Repurchase Day after the Repurchase Notke b received ard Urits will then be
reciermed at the relesant repurchase price applicable on that Repurchase Day,

A& Hepunchase Notice, once given, b innevacabie,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For thi Year Ended February 28, 2023

LENITS: [caetiuen d]

Compaulsary Redempdion

In the geent that the Trustes of ths Manager shall detenmine that any Units of any dass of 3 Serles. Trost ane being held by
or for the berefit of a person wiho is not an Eligible irvestor Tor such Sevies Trust of that such holding would cavse the
Trust or the Series Trus 1o be recuired to register, be subject 1o tax or siolate the laws of any jursdiction, or B the Trustes
or the Manager has reason to doubt the kegitimacy of the source of monies wed 1o fund the wibsoiption or puchse of
such Units, or for whatever reason (which may not be disdosed by the Trustes or the Manager to Unitholders) that the
Truston or the Manager considers appropriate at its absohite discretion having regerd fo the interests of the Linitholders of
the relevam Class or the Urithoddees of thie Serkes Trust a5 2 whole, then the Manager, after corsultation with the Trustee,
mury direct the holder thereof to sell sudh Urits within 10 days and provide 10 the Trister and the Manager evidence of
such sale, failing which the Manager may redeem suth Urdts,

Tewminotion of ife Seres Trust

Upon tenmination, the Marager will reallze ol the axsets of the Series Trust, and after paying out or retaining adecuate
provision for o labdties properly pavable and retsining provision for the costs of the terminateon, the Trustes dhall
distribute the procescs of that realization to the Unitholders proporiionately to ther respective interests in the Series
Trust a5 of the date of tenrenation of the Series Trus,

Delribolions b Ui okdens

Thee Manager may, from tirn to 1ame, in Rs solp disonetion, declane distribaniions from September 2117, Distribution will be
dedared on each Buseness Day irrediately pior 10 the Bx-Distibution Date for JPY and LSD Distribution Class Units or
such other date of dates a5 the Manager may from time to me determine i respect of the Senes Trost (“Distribution
Recond Date”™) and caloulated on the fifieenth {15th) day of sadh month for Monthly Distribution Class Units and the
fiftmenth [15th) day of March and September of each year for Semi-Annual Cistribution Qass Units (i such day bonot a
Business Day, than on the following Susiness Cayl, or such other date or dates in each month a5 the Manager may from
tirese to time determine in respect of the Senies Trust ("Ex-Distribution Date™], Distabution Feread is 8 period commencing
from the calencar day following the preceding Distribution Record Cote and encing on and inrcluding the Distribution
Recond Date. The distributions will be paid on the reevard Distribution Payment Date, provided that sudh amourd (i€ any)
declared with respect to the relevant Gass of Units in respect of the applicable Sistribution Fesiod shall only be paid out of
the Series Trust's net income, realiced and wrrealiced capital gairs and any cistributable funds of the Sefies Trust
attributable fo such Class of Units &5 determined by the Manages.

Tha declaration of distributions 1o Unitholders reduces the Class Level Net Assat Value per Unit withoart any corresponding
charge in the number of Class Level Urits ped Unitholder, Thas results in a Unitholder's overall irvestment in the Series
Trust beirg recuced. In acddition, ary distributions during a period which are In excess of the Series Trust's net inorease: in
et assets pesulting froen opdrations results in 2 portion of the disth bution besrg return of capital,

The amourt of distributions, if any, will be determined by the Manager in its sols discretion, and ne repeesentation ar
guarant e is rmace that 8 distribution will be mace in fespect of each of any Distribution Perod,

Capitalization
The Net Asset Value per Unil s caloulated for each Dealing Say (each Valuation Day, or such other day or days as the
Manager may from time o time determing in respect of the Series Trust), by divideng the difference i value between the
Series Trust's assets and Habilities |inchuding acorued fees and expenses of the Series Trust) by the number of Units
outatandirg

The Trust Deed sipulates 1hat the pumber oF Units to be istued in the Series Trust shall be wrSimited as the Marager shall
dietermine and shall be without par valoe.

DERMATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accounting Standard Codification {ASC) 81%5-10-50 requines disclosures about derfvative Insiruments and hecging activities.
It reguires that the Series Trust gisdose: a) how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, b} how derfivatie
instruments and rdated hedped Hems ane acooynted for and o how dervative instnaments and refated hedged items
aFfEst a0 entity's Srancisl podition, Srancisl perfommance and cash lows.

Thar Series Trust transacts foreand demivative instruments primarily for hedging purposes with each instrument’s primaey

risk exposure being fornign exchange risk. The forward forekgn currency exchange comdracts held by the Series Trust do no
qualify as hedges for accounting purposes under the requiresments of ASC 815,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

DERTATIVE FINARCIAL INSTRURENTS {continued)

Thar fair vabue of these derreative mstruments is inchuded in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities with changes in fair
value reflected as realined gains/(losses] or net change in unrealimed apps eclation/[cepredation) on derhatives within the
Statermert of Operations [Note 2],

Thi Series Trust may ented inlo &n intemnational Swaps and Deivatiee Associstion, ine Masier Agresmert {TIS0A Master
Agreement”] with its counterparties in order fo mitigate counterparty risk. The ISDA Master Agreement is Typically
regotisted by the Sevies Trust snd its courterparties, containing the bi-dateral terms and conditions for all subsequent
devieative trarsactions. The S04 Master Agresment allows for the netting of all amounts owed to or due from
LountErperty into & g net payirent if B onedit svent o defiult should oetur,

Thee Series Trust bas dected 10 not $ffset e value receivables and payobles for cerivative contracs on the feoe of the
Staternent of Asseds and Liabilities.

At February 28, 2023 the Series Trust had entered into the following derivative assets by counterparty net of amounts
available for of Fet under o Masher Ketting Agreermant (TMNAT] and net of any ollateral received by the Serie Trost:

Derbratie Asiets Dervank H h Cwih Mgt Armenirst o
':-u_-ll!m Elﬁinlm Ooendlwhie for Dffset Colfateral Reoshad Colfabersl Recehad Derivabies Sa pets”
Brerw s Brothers Harriman & Co wo Fosdioe] [FILETs] -G -0 FiE]
anen 27,514 {77.514) - - -
Total OB wmowvo __@ew o S0 BT F]

At February 28, 2023 the Seres Trust had ertered imo the Tollowing defivative Rablities by courtenpary net of senounts
avallable for offset under a MAA ard net of any coflateral pledged by the Seres Toust

D arfwwiive Mt Smemamt of
Lizhiligic: O erhathes MNorecarh Cath Derbeative
Salbjucs to s MG available for Offret Collstars! Madged Collatarsl Fladged  Uiahilkiss!
Brown Brothars Mamman & Co. 6D JLED [FES] =KD =1ED B
anee 578,533 (37,5841 - - 554013
Total [T 578,535 WD {27 51E)WED =50 = LS50 551,019

b Pt drveoin L il e i sstuit, Pocw ki Bayaitle from Se coustaiparty B el of defal

At February 28, 2023 the Series Tiust had entened imo the follawing dervatives

g gk DErivathag L Dha b b
Do Statament Statemand
Mot Beosrted for b of Assets wnd of faaats wnd
Hmhh-ﬁtﬂl Unbilktisi Losation Fulr Valiss Lishilitien Locstion Fair Vahia
Farward Foreign aurrenty  Uniediced spprecimion Urenadized dapr soaion
enchanpe conbracts o forewrd foreign onforward foregn
| Curraney Rk ] Ligfansy it hargE =0 INTEY  ewrviney sachangs LE] ] {578 535)
i Paetd [ads 1

The effist of dervirtneg indtiuments on the Statement of Operstaans fa the year enced February 28, 2023

Ehierggm in Uewaalivad
Loewtiam of Feslied Appeecivion oF
Derbvative: Mot Sccourted Guin or {Ladi) Gain or {Lea) {Depredation) an
foran Nllt:ln‘ Inetrumants on Derkesthar mlkl‘hmh! Clarkeathoms
s raalad 13 it Rl orwind Loil g
Foreard Bareign aamency wwrrency echange cordract
wachangs contract dhirvpein unredlited depraotisn enlorwerd
{Currency Pk ] Sorign corvenoy gechan ge contracs L (52T 141) LBD {E5E 057)

TAANAGERMENT FLES

The Manager receives, oul of the assets of the Series Trust, a managemen! fee of 3 total up to 0.6B% per annum (D034
Pt annur in respect of fme for the Manager, 0L25% por snnum of the Net Asset Value up b USD 400 million snd 0.22%
per areum of the Net Asset Value over USD 400 million in respect of fee for the imvestrnant Manager, and 0LA0% per
srnurn of the Met Asset Value up to LSD 200 millicn snd 0.55% per snrom of the Net Asset Value gver LSO 00 million in
respect of few fof the Sub-imvestment Manager) of the Net Asset Value acoued on, and caloulated a5 8%, sach Valustion
Cay and payable marthly in anresrs. in sddition, the Manager also reimburses, out of the assets of the Serdes Trusd, for any
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For thi Year Ended February 28, 2023

ARG GERENT FEES [continuid)

experses incumed by B in the proper performance of i3 powers and duties o5 paritted uncer the Master Trust Deed,
During the yrar ended February 28, 3033, the Manager camed fees of USD 381,436, of which USD 27,935 is still
outstanding a3 of February 28, 2023,

The Manager pays the fees of the Inssstonert Manager cart of its fers. The iraesment Manager is responsible for paying
the fees of the Sub-imeestment Manager and any of the imvestment Manages's delegates or other paribes appointed by the
Imestment Manager 1o perform its functions in respect of the Series Trost.

CUSTODUAN AND SLIB-ADMIMISTRATOR'S FEES

The Custadian and Subadministrator receives a cusiody fer caloulated and paid monthly based on fotal assets and
transaction wohume,

Ther Custodian and Sub-Administrator moeives, out of the assets of the Sedes Trust, an administration fee [nduding
transfer agent fen] caloulated based on the Met Asset Value a5 at each Valuation Day at the following annual rate:
-DLOPH up to (A incluing] S0 250 mallion;

« OLOEY up to fard bnchding] LSES00 milion;

- LOS¥ oty LISDIS00 il

Such adminisiration fee i payable menthly in arrears, and subject 10 the mirsmum senuel fee of USD 60,000, The
Custodian and Sub-Administeator also receives, out of the assets of the Series Trust, fees for ourmoncy adnrinistration ang
execution services at the rate of 0.08% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the relevar Unit Class, subject to the
manimum anpual fee of USD 50,0000 n addition, the Custodian and Sub-Admanistrator recenms oustomary salekeeping fees
and trareaction charges. All out-of podkst expenses of the Custodian ard Sub-Administrator are bomne by the Senies Trust,
During the year enced February 28, 2023, the Custodian and Sub-Admiristrator sarned fees of USD 97,083, of which USD
33,599 bs siill putstanciing as of Febreary 28, 2033,

THUSTEE FEES

The Trustee recefves, out of the assets of the Sees Trust, a combined fee at the rate of LO15% per annum of the Net
HAsset Value aocrued on, and caloulated as at each Valuation Dy and payeble quariedy in arrears, subject to @ rinim uen
annual e of USD 15,000, During the year ended Fobruary 28, 2023, the Trustes eamed fees of USD 15,001, of which USD
6,644 s still sutstanding as of February 28, 2023,

AGENT CORMPANYTS NEES

Thi Agent Company receives, out of the asseis of the Series Trust, o fee ol the rate of 0.02% per annue of the Net Asset
Value acoued o, and caloulated as at, each Waluation Day and payable quartedy in arrears, During the year ended
February 28, 2023, the Agent Company edmed foes of US0 8,278, of which LUSD 3,719 i ll outstanding a4 of Felbruary 28,
HE3

HSTRIBUTOR'S FEES

The Distributors recerve, out of the assets of the Serles Trust, a fee at the rate of 0.60% per anrum of the Net Asset Value
aconued om, and caloulated as at each Valuation Cay and payable quarierly in armears, During the year ended February 28,
2023, the Distributorns eannesd fees of USD 248,375, of which LS0 104,629 is still eutstanding 85 of Februsry 28, 2023,

OTHER FEES AND EXPEMNSES

The costs and expenses in connection with the establithment of the Series Trust and the offiering of the Units, {ogether
with the establishment of the Trust, induding the costs and esperses of preparing and peinting any prospecius or
explanatory brochures mequired, were estimated ot lunch to amount o spproximately USD 140,000, Such costs and
eapenses will be amodtised within the first five {5) firancial years of the Series Trust unless the Trustes decides that some
other method shall be applied. The Administrator receives USD 1,500 per anram for FATCA [/ CRS compliance senices.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

TINANCLAL RIGE FMANNGEMENT

Thie Sersy Trust's aeinities expase it 10 8 vanety of financial risks: market risk (inchuding price risk, anterest rate risk, and
currenoy risk), credit risk and lousdite risk,

Market Rk
AN imsestments present a risk of loss of capital. The Imeshment Manager moderates this rish through a coareful selection of
securities and othar firencial irstrumants,

Thet Series Trust's inwestmer? maragement prooess is desoribed i Note 1. The grenary ceterminant of the Serses Tnost's
ability 1o meet Bx objective of mid to long tenm capital appreciation while saming income is deperdert on the
performarce of the investirent in the residential and commsmercial mongage-badked securities,

The vahse of the Series Trost's inwvestments is affected by 2 pumber of factors, inclhuding but not lienited to, changes in the
wider pcongmy, finandal and currency markets, foreign curency eschange rates, imerest e movements and credis
ratings of debt issuers, The Sedes Trust may enter into foreard Toresgn currency exchange contract which to varying
degress reprosent a market risk in pacess of the amount reflected on the Serles Trust's Statement of Assets and Liabdlitees,
The ratasnal amount of the contract represents the extent of the Senies Trust's partcipateon o these firandal instruments.
Market fisks amoclated with such contracts arise cue 10 the possible movemerts in forogn currency pachange rates
urderbying these instrusnents.

Orther mrarket and credint fisks inchude the possibility that there may be an illicuid rmerket for the contrects, that the dhange
in the value of the corract may rot directly corndlate with changes in the value of the underlying curnences of that the
counterparty toa forwand contract defaults on its obligation to perform under the terms of the contract. The Series Trust's
exposune to loss dus to courerpanty non-parformance on open futunes, forwards, saap and opticns conrtracts is limited 1o
the unrealized appreciation irhessnt in such firandal instruments which are recognized in the S2atement of Astets and
Liabilities.

A #l-bockid focurilidd investmenl itk

Asnet-backed securities imvwestment have the risk that bosrowers may defaul on the obligations that undedie the et
backed security 2nd that, during periods of falling imterest rates, amet-backed securities may be called o prepaid, which
mary result in the Series Trust haing to reimvest procesds in other imeestments at a lower interest rate, and the risk that
the: impairment of the wilue of the collateral underlying a seourity in which the Series Trost irvests [due, for example, to
non-paymsen t of loans] will result in 2 recuction in the value of the security,

Concentralion sk

The Series Teust may imest substantially in bonds Bssued by U5 agencies in accordarce with ity principal imvestment
strategies, Because such spcurities are Bsued by a Hmited number of goverrarent agencies, any actual or poterial
disruption to those agencies could present a rsk to the Sedes Trust. Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, which are other
Rovemment sponsored ssvers of morgage-back securitins simslar to those guarariesd by Gannbe Mae, suffered sudh a
dizruption in the mortgage crisis of 2307 - X308 and were placed under feceral conservatorihip af that time. Ginnie Mae
seciaities, unlike those of Farnie Mae and Frecdie Mac, are backed by the full faith and crecit of the L5, governmant and
ane subject 1o the risks of LS government securities. Similar to other i ssuers, charges 1o the finandal condlition or oredis
rating of the U5 governmen may cause the value of the Series Test's esposune 10 U5 agencess ssourities to dedine,

Maortgage-bocked secwritics sk

Morigage-backed securities represent imterests in Cpools” of mortgages and are subject to credit, interest rate,
prepayirent ard etension ek, Morgige-backed seourities react differemtly to changes o interest rates than other bonds
and the prices of mortgage-backed securities may reflec acverse econoimic and market concitions, Small movements in
intenest rates [both ircremes and decreases) may quickly and significantly reduse the velue of certam mangage -badued
secunities, Dofault or bankruptoy of @ countesparty to a fo-be-announced transaction would eapose the Series Trust o
passible loss.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

TINANCLAL RISK MANAGERENT [oontinueed)

Martgage relrted amd Other Assel-Bock ed Securilnes risk

Tha Series Trust may irvest in mongage-related and other aset-backed sequrities that direclly or indirectly represert a
participation in, of s secured by and payable from, loars on real property, Morigage-related seounities ane created from
pocks of residerdial or commercial mongage loars, including mortgage loans made by savirgs and loan insiftutions,
maorigage bankers, commarcial banks and others. These securities provide a manthly payment which consists of bath
interest and prncipal, nterest may be deternnined by fised or adjustable rates. The rote of prepayments on underying
marigages will affect the price and wolatility of a mortgage refated soourity, and may bawe the offect of shoriening or
exending the effective duration of the secutity relathee 10 what was anticipated at the time of purchase. The timely
payment of prindpal and inerest of corain mortgagerelated seourities is guarant eed with the full faith-and credit of ihe
U5 Government, Pools oeated and gusarteed by nongovernmental issuers, ncluding govermiment-sponsoned
corporations, may be supponted by vanous forms of insurance or guarantees, but thene can be ro asaerance that privaie
insurers of guarniors con meet their obligations urder the insurance polides o guararee arrangements, Many of the
risks of imaesting in morgagerelated seourities secured by commencial mortgage Ipans reflect the effpcts of lacal and
other ecorodric concitiors on real estate markets, the ability of terants 1o make lease payrnents, and the ability of a
property to attract and metain tenants.

Credie Risk

Cresdit risk represents the potential loss that the Series Trust would incur if the courienparties or istuers of debt seourities
faited to perform pursuant 1o the tenms of their cbllgations 1o the Series Trust, For eadhamge-traded contracts, the
exchange acts a8 the conterparty o spedfic transactions and, therefore, bears the ritk of defivery to and from
counterparties of spedfic positions, The Serles Trust's management does rot consicer that crecit dsk related to open
derieative contracts will have material acheerse efect on the Sinancial cordiSon of the Series Trust,

ahthough the Manager moritors the Cusiodian and believes if to be an approprist e custodian, there & no guarantes that
this or any austocdian that the Series Trust may wvie from time o time, will not become irsohent, which could lead to losses
for the Series Tus:,

Wihile both the LS Bankruptoy Code and the Securities investor Protection Act of 1970 seek o protect customer propery
in the ewerd of & failure, inschasncy or Bauidation of an inttitution, there is no cortainty that, in the event of a falure of an
institution that has custody of Series Trust assets, the Sedes Trust would not Inour losses dueto s assets being unaailable
for a pericd of time, ulimately less than full recovery of its assets, of both, Secause all of the Series Trust's cash i in
cusindy with a single Institution, such losses could be sigrificant and could matesially impair the ability of the Seres Trus
to achieve s imvestment objective. The Series Trusd is dubject 10 crodit dsk to the extent that this institution may be
unabla to fulfil is obligations 10 repay amounts owed

Ligeicily Risk
Irvestors should be aware that the walue of Units might fall as well as rise. Imaestment in the Series Trust imobes a degree
of risk, there can be no assurance that the Serles Trust's irmvestment obgective will be achirved,

Tha Series Trust is exposed to dally repurchase of fis Unlts but management believes that the Seres Trust has sufficen
resources to mest the present ang foresecable needs of its busines operstions and, i necessary, the Bquidity to fund
repurchases ard achiewe a3 market position spgroprintely reflecting 2 smaller capital base. This position is moniaded
comimaally by management to snsure that the Senes Trust has the ability to moet its obigations.

Currency itk

Thar Series Teust holdds monetary and Ron-montary 355els 2nd ircurs monetary ard non-monetary lablities denominated
in currencies other tham WSD, the Functional Currency. | §s therefore exposed (o oarency sk, a3 the vabue of the assets
and linbdthes cenominated in other currencies {"non-USE”) will fluctuate due 1o changes in exchange rates. The Sanes
Trust min enter into cumency hedging transactions from time (o tinne &n onder fo limit s eeposure to cumency nisk.

The irvestement mansger monitors the Series Toust's cutfency exposure on & daily basis,

LIBOT Replacemeal Risk

Many finandal Irstruments use of may use @ floating rate based on London Interbank Offered Rate (CLIBORT, the offered
rate a1 which major ntemational barks can obtsin wholesale, vnseoured funding. UBOR may be a significant facior in
determining the Series Trost's payment obiigations under 3 dervative Ivestmaent, the cost of inencing to the Serkes Trust
or an imeestmert’s value or refurn to the Series Tnest, and may be wed in other ways that affect the Seres Trst's
imestrent porformarce. The Urited Kingdom's Financlal Conduct Autharity armounced a phase out of LIBOR. Alhough
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

TINANCLAL RISE MANAGEMENT [ooninueed)

LIBENT Replocereal Risk foontinued)
many LBOA rates were phased out by the erd of 2021, 3 selection of widely used USO LIBOR rates will contirue to be
published theough bure 2023 in ander (o assist with 1 e transition.

The Series Trust may be exposed to finendal irstruments tied o LS0OR to determine payment obligations, finandng terms,
hedging strateges or imvestmen! value. The tramition process away from LUBOR might lead to increased volatlity ang
illiquidity in markets for, and recuce the effectiveness of new hodges placed agains, instruments whose terms cunrerly
include LIEOA, The ultemate efect of the LSBOR tansition process isnat expected (o be matedal 1o the Series Teust,

Qrher fisk

On February 24, 2002, Russa laurched a military invation imto Ukraine. The conflict, which is ongoing as of the date that
the financial siastements were available to be ssued, carrles sgrificart risks for 2 world economy that has yel to fully
recover from the impacts of the globel COVIB-19 pandemic. Related Empacts 1o gro-political instabiity, financial marke
wolatility, and the imposition of sanctiors, may in fum impaect the entity,

COMPITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Iy the normal course of Business, the Trustee oo behall of the Sefies Trisl ray enter iro corraces that domMain & vasety
of reprosontations and wanrarties and which provide genesal indemnifications, The general indemnifications apply not onky
ter the extent such represerations snd wanfanties are untree bid alss may coner third parties such os the Serses Trust's
Administrator, Auditcr of invastirent Manager for daims related to the sendoes performed for the Sefies Trust. The
Trustes's masimaum exposune under any such amangesments is urknown, a5 exposure only arises to the extent fubure daims
that hawe not yet ocourred ane made ageinst the Trustes. Howerver, based on experience, the Trestee expects the risk of
loss to be remote.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management performed a subsequent events eeview vpio June 16, X123, which is the date the financia] statements were
irvailoble 1o be ssued

Effective March 1, 3023 through Jume 16, 2023, there were subscriptiors of USDH 150,868 in respect of @Y Monthly
Gistribution Class and there were subscoriptions of USD 362,506 in revpect of JFY Samil-Arnual Bistribution Class, there were
subseriptions of LSS LA5T i respect of USD Monthly Gistributisn (lass, there were subscriptions of USD 8,496 n respect
of LAD Seml-Annual Dsiribution Class,

Effective March 1, 2023 through June 16 3033, there were redemptions of USD 533,668 n respect of Y Monthly
Distribution Class and there wif e no redemplionsin respect of 2% Semi-Anrual Divtributaan Class, there wene fedemption s
of LSD 245283 in respect of LSO Monthly Sistribution Class, there were redemptions of U0 578,068 in respect of USD
Semi-tnrual Distribtion Class,

There were distributions of USD 124346 in respect of JPY Momhly Cistribution Oass, There were distributions of USD
216,834 i respest of JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class, There were distributions of USD 7,223 in respect of USS Monthly
Distribution Class. There wene distributions of LD 56,960 in respect of USO Semi-Arnual Distribution Class,

There are ne other Sgrificant events toreport a5 they rdate 1o the Serkes Tiust,
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53,154,500.98 8,561,595,473
238,950.35 38,487,733
52,915,550.63 8,523,107,740
114,803
1,789,289
25,537
751,284
8.20 1,321
8.97 1,445
6,948
7,456
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4,561,628 734,741 10,387,958 1,673,188
1,834,018 295,405 2,439,807 392,980
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1,655,120 266,590 1,996,396 321,560
1,655,120 266,590 1,996,396 321,560
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11
10 22
2024 16
129332

161.07

143/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 31
2024 2023
12,998,608 2,093,686 12,607,808 2,030,740
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982,925 158,320 1,161,528 187,087
(104,049) (16,759) (80,923) (13,034)
878,876 141,561 1,080,605 174,053
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659,157 106,170 875,290 140,983
659,157 106,170 875,290 140,983
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480,000 77,314 9,476,079 1,526,312 9,956,079 1,603,626
875,290 140,983 875,290 140,983
480,000 77,314 10,351,369 1,667,295 10,831,369 1,744,609
659,157 106,170 659,157 106,170
(6,750,000)  (1,087,223) (6,750,000)  (1,087,223)
480,000 77,314 4,260,526 686,243 4,740,526 763,557
11
161.07
2024 31
2024 2023
659,157 106,170 875,290 140,983
98,264 15,827 80,923 13,034
219,719 35,390 205,315 33,070
5,785 932
982,925 158,320 1,161,528 187,087
58,583 9,436 222,571 35,850
9,320 1,501 (193,526) (31,171)
(27,715) (4,464) (152,898) (24,627)
(1,179) (190)
1,021,934 164,603 1,037,675 167,138
(6,750,000)  (1,087,223)
(6,750,000)  (1,087,223)
(5,728,066) (922,620) 1,037,675 167,138
10,387,958 1,673,188 9,431,206 1,519,084
(98,264) (15,827) (80,923) (13,034)
4,561,628 734,741 10,387,958 1,673,188
11
161.07
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225,510 11,691
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2024 2023
878,876 1,080,605
2023 19
(219,719) (205,315)
(219,719) (205,315)
25.0 19.0
2024 2023
1,710,268 1,822,476
52,370
547,206
71,380 70,125
1,834,018 2,439,807
2024 2023
214,067 158,831
230,168 194,982
991,166 1,072,268
219,719 570,315
1,655,120 1,996,396
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(
2024 31 79,609 2023 80,000
11

151/214

http://www_smth_jp/en/



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MNIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2024
Note 2024 2023
usb Usp
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,561,628 10, 387 958
Debtors T 1,834,018 2,434,807
Total Current Assets 6,395,646 12,827,765
Liabilities and Equity
Current Liabilities
Creditors g 1,655,120 1,996,396
Total Current Uabilities 1,655,120 1,996,396
Equity
Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity
Holders of the Company
Share capital (51 par valee, 1,000,000 shares
authorised, 480,000 shares issued and 480,000 430,000
outstanding at 31 March 2024 ard 2023)
Retained earnings 4,260,526 10,351,385
Total Equity 4,740,526 10,831,369
Total Liabilities and Equity 6,395,646 12,827,765

The annexed notes from 1 to 11 form an integral part of these financial statements,

These financial statements on pages 10 to 22 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised
for issue and signed an its behalf by:

y —
D Cruise
Director
16 July 2024

Company registered number: 129332
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NIKKD AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Note 2024 2023

usb ush
Reverue 3 12,998,608 12,607,808
Administrative expenses [12.015,683) (11 446.280)
Operating profit 982,925 1,161,528
Cther expenses 5 {104,049) {B0,923)
Profit before income tax E7B.B76 1,080,605
Income tax 6 {219,719) {205,315)
Profit after income tax 659,157 875,290
Cther Comprehensive Income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 659,157 875,290

Allthe Company’s operations are classified as continuing.

The annexed notes from 1 to 11 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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NIKKD AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Share Retained
B Capital Earnings o
usk usp uUsD
Balance at 1 April 2022 480,000 9,476,079 9,956,079
Total compre hensive income for ) 475,290 875,290
the year
Balance at 31 March 2023 480,000 10,351,369 10,831,369
Total compre bensive income for 659.157 659,157
the year
Divicdend paid . {6, 750,000} {6, 750,000)
Balance at 31 March 2024 480,000 4,260,526 4,740,526

The annexed notes from 1 to 11 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit after tax
Adjustments for
Met foreign exchange loss
Tax charge
Interest expense
Operaticnal cash flows before movements in
working capital

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Dacrease in receivables
Increasef (decrease] in payables
Met amounts paid to affiliate — group tax relief
Interest paid

MNet Cash Generated from Operating Activities

Financing Activities
Dividend paid to equity holders
Met Cash from Financing Activities

Met {decrease)f increase in Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of the Year

Note

o
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2024 2023

uso usp
659,157 875,290
98,264 80,923
215,719 205,315

5,785

982,925 1,161,528
58,583 222571
9,320 {193,526)
(27,715} {152,2923)
{1,179) X
1,021,934 1,037,675
{6, 750,000} -
{6,750,000) .
{5,728,066) 1,037,675
10,387,958 9,431,206
(98, 264) {80,523}
4,561,628 10,387,958

The annexed notes from 1 toa 11 farm an integral part of these finarcial statements.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

MNote 1 = General Information

Nikke AM Global Caymar Limited [“the Company”) is incorporated and damiciled in the Cayman
Islands. The address of the registered office is PO Bax 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Streat,
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands. The principal activities of the Company curing the year were the
provision of investment advice and investment management senvices to third parties and other group
members, These norn-statutory financlal statements have been prepared to ensure continued
compliance by the Company with the requirements of Chapter 3 of the Overseas Companies
Repulations,

Mote 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Principles
The principal accounting policies adopted are set aut below.

Basis of preparaticn

The Company's financial statements have bean prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards (UK-adopted |FRS) and IFRIC interpretations applicable to companies reparting
urcer IFRS. As at 31 March 2024, the Company had adopted all IFRSs and interpretations that had
been issued by the Irternational Accounting Standards Board {"1ASB"} and International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee {"IFRIC*). The accounting policies set out below have been
applied consistently to all perinds presented in these financial statements. IFRSs comprise accounting
stancards issued by the IASE and its predecessor body as well as interpretations issued by the [FRIC
and its predecessor bocy,

The directars have adopted the going concern basis of preparation in preparing these financial
statements for the fallowing reasons: the Company is profitable; the Company has a strang and highly
liguic balance sheet incluging cash reserves of 34,561,628 as at 31 March 2024 which s adequate to
cover the relatively low-cost base [after excluding sub-advisory fees which are covered by revenues).
The cirectors have prepared profit forecasts which, together with the liquid reserves and low cost
base, incicate that the Company has sufficient reserves to meet their labilities for at least 12 months
fram the date of preparing these financial statements.

Basec on the above, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adeguate
resoUTCces to continue its operations for at least 12 morths from the date of these financial statements,
Therefore, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these acoounts,

MNew accounting standards adopted
The directors ¢o not consider that any new accourting standarcs had a material impact on the
Company in the current year.

Measurement convention
The financial staterments have been preparec under the historical cost convention.
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NIKKD AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

MNote 2 = Summary of Significant Accounting Principles (continued)

Estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements reguires the directors to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and the amounts
reported for reverues and expenses during the year. The nature of estimation means that actual
outcomes could differ from those estimates. The assumptions and estimates, which are continuously
reviewed, are based on past experience and ather factors, including expectations regarding likely
cevelopments in the future. At 21 March 2024 ard 2023 there were na material estimates or
assumptions.

Operating revenues

Operating revenues include investmant management, investment advisory ard performance fees,
Operating revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recevable for
services provided in the normal course of business, ret of discounts, trail fees, VAT and other sales
related taxes,

Investment management and acdvisory fees and assaciated charges are recognised over time when
the services concermed are rendered, Investment management and advisory fees are calculated as a
percentage of assets under maragement. Performance fees are recopnised at a point in time when
they crystallise in the period in which they become due ana collectable.

Operating cxpenses
Operating expenses are accounted for when they become payable.

Current and deferred income tax

Tax an the profit or loss for the year comprises current anc deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
statement of comprebensive income except to the extert that it relates to items recognised directly
in egurty, in which case it is recopnisad in equity.

Current tax is the expectec tax payable or receivable or the taxable incame or loss for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

The Company may wtilise current tax credits anising or losses in other Group entities against its tax
charges.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differerces between the carnying
amoumnts of assets and liabilities in the statement of firarcial posiion and the corresponding tax bases
uvsed in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax is accounted for using the statement of
financial position lability methad. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recogrised for all taxable
temporary differences ard deferred tax assets are recognised to the extert that it i probable that
taxable profits will be available against which decuctible temporary differences can be utilised.
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NIKKD AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

MNote 2 = Summary of Significant Accounting Principles (continued)

Foreign currencies
The functional and presertational curmncy of the Company 15 US dollars [5).

Trarsactions in currencies other than US collars are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing an
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are
cenominated in foreign currencies are retranslatac at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date,
Man-monetary assets anc liabilities carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when fair value was determired, Gains and losses
arising on retranslation are included In net profit or loss for the periog, except for exchange
diffarences arising an non-maonetary assets and labilities where the chanpges in falr value are
recopnised directly in equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in banks and in band and shart-term depasits with an ariginal
maturity of three months or less and foreign currencies held by the Company. For the purpases of the
cash flow statement, cash and cash eguivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above,

Cash dividend

The Company recogrises a liability to pay a dividerd when the distribution is authorised, and the
gistribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. A distribution is avthorised when it is
approved by the shareholcers. A corresponding amounrt is recognisea directly in equity,

Financial instruments
The vast majority of the Company’s financial instruments are cash, receivables and payables which are
measured at amartised cost.

The Compary has evaluated potential credit losses on all financial assets that are measured at
amartised cost. Factors considered in determining whether a default is likely or possible include
whether a payment is overdue {and the length of that period), any known deterioration in the credit
cuality of a client/ counterparty ar other issues that could adversely affect a client’s/ counterparty’s
credit guality.

Far financial assets where there is no known issues affecting credit quality, expected credit losses are
calculated basad on the losses that are expected to be incurred aver a rolling twelve-month periad.
Given the nature of the Company's financial assets [ie. mostly cash at bank), there is a very low credit
risk. The Company is also considering the use of morey market funds to increase diversification and
further reduce credit risk,

Far any financial assets where the contractual payment is more than 30 days past due, the default

position is to assume an increase in credit risk. Howewver, defaul levels in the past have been
immaterial and there were no fee receivables denoted as past due as at 31 March 2024,
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NIKKD AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

MNote 2 = Summary of Significant Accounting Principles (continued)

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable include amounts due for management, advisory and performance fees and
amounts due from customers and others. All accaunts receivable are repayable on demand ar within
one year. They are recorded in the balance sheet at cost, recuced by appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecaverable amaunts, and they are interest bearing.

Accounts payable

Accounts payable include amounts due for sub-advisory services and performance fees and amounts
due to wendors and athers. All accounts payable are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangement enterad into. They are payable on demand or within one year and are
recorced on the balance sheet at cost. Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interast
free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Note 3 = Revenue from Contracts with Customers

All reverue relates to the provision of investment acvice and Iinvestment management senvices and
arises in the Cayman lslancs.

2024 2023
usp usD
Imvestment management and advisory fees 12,773,098 12,596,117
Performance fees 225,510 11,691
Total 12,998,608 12,607 808
Note 4 = Auditor's Remuneration
2024 2023
usp UsD
Fees payable to Company's Auditor for the audit
of the company financial statemeants 44,561 42,288
Total 44,961 42,288
Mote 5 = Other Expenses
2024 2023
usp usp
Met foraign exchange loss 98 264 20,923
Interest Expense 5,785
Total 104,049 80,923
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Note 6 = Taxation

Taxes on income for the year erced 21 March 2024 were as follows:

2024 2023
uUsp usp
Current Tax
UK earparation tax at 25 [2023: 19%) (219,718 {205,315)
Total Current Income Tax Expense (219,719) (205,315)
Total Income Tax Expense (219,719) {205,315)

A reconciliation between the amount of tax expense at the effective statutory rate and taxes on
incame as reflected in continuing operations for the years ended 31 March 2024 ard 2023 is presented
bebavar;

Tax Reconciliation

Profit before taxes B7aa76 1,080,605
Profit multiplied by the standard rate of carparation tax in

the UK: 25% (2023: 19%%) {219,719) {205,315)
Total Income Tax Expense {219,719} {205,315)
Effective tax rate for the year 25.0% 19.0%

The Compary uses currert tax credit from other entities in the Mikko Group to offset the Company's
current tax expense.

The amount due to affiliates in relation to group tax relief i included as a payable in the statement of
firanclal position, nate 8. The prior year Corporation tax receivable, nate 7, and Amount payable to
affiliate - proup tax relief, note &, were settled during the year.

Note 7 = Debtors

2024 2023

usp usD
Accounts recelvable 1,710,263 1,822 476
Amounts receivable from affiliates 52,370 .
Corporation tax receivable . 547 206
Accrued income and prepaid expense 71380 70,125
Taotal 1,834,018 2,439,807
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Note 8 = Creditors

2024 2023

usp usp
Accrued expenses and deferred income 214,067 158 231
Accounts payable 230,168 194 982
Amounts payable to affiliates 991,166 1072 268
Amounts payable to affiliates — group tax relicf 219,719 570,315
Total 1,655,120 1,996,396

MNote 9 = Financial Risk Factors

The Company's financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents and receivable and payable
balances that arise from its daily operations. All cash anc cash equivalerts are carried at cost which
& consicersd to approximate to fair value cue to the short term maturity of these financial
instruments, The main risks associated with the Company's financial assets and liabilities are set out
below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is defined as the risk of financial loss due to a counterparty’s failure to honour its oblipation
principally in relation to transactions where the Company provides goods or services on deferred
terms and where it invests or deposits surplus cash. The directors do nat believe that the Company is
materially exposed to credit risk as its sales debtors are maraged group furds ard therefore
management and peformance fees receivable are governed by its agreements with these funds. Ta
mitigate ary residual risk of these assets failing to be delivered, the directors ensure that the terms of
these agreaments in relation 1o payments of management and performance fees are adhered to by
mianitoring the Compary’s aged debtor analysis against the agreed service level agreaments.

The Company adopts the policy of dealing with customers of appropriate credit history. For other
firancial assets, the Company adopts the policy of dealing with financial institutions and other
courterparties with high credit ratings, There are no financial assets past due and/ or impaired as at
31 March 2024 and 2023. Trade receivables are due at least guarterly, and are normally settled within
30 days of their due date, There are no overdue trade receivables at the balance sheet date,

Further, with regard to bank deposits, the Companry only deposits morey with approved
counterparties on agresc terms.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

MNote 9 = Financial Risk Factors {continued)

Market risk

Market risk for systemic risk] is defined as that risk whick 15 common to an entire class of assets ar
liabilities whereby their value can fluctuate simply because of economic changes ar other events that
impact large portians of the market. The directars do not believe that the Company 15 expased to
material market risk as the assets the Company marages are held by and for the benefit of fund
holders through separate legal entities.

Currency risk
Currency risk is defined as the risk that the value of assets and liabilities denominated in currencies

other than the furctional currency of the Company will change in value due to movemants in foreign
exchange rates. The Company is exposed to currency risk arising from cash balances and fees
receivable in various currencies.

The Company’s total exposure to currency risk arising from cash balances, payables and fees
receivable in other currencies is $700,040 [2023: 5461,277). As at 31 March 2024, had these curmencies
strergthened/ weakened by 10% against the USD, the total exposure would have been lower by
approximately $64k {2023, 542k} increased by approximately 578k {2023; 551k},

Liguidity risk and financial solvency risk

Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due. The directors approach to managing this risk is to ensure that the Company has
sufficient liguidity to meet its liabilities when due, both under normal and stressed conditions.

Capital management

The Company’s capital pasition i monitared an an ongaing basis to ensure that it is adequate. There
are ro externally impased capital requirements.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
MNote 10 = Related Party Transactions

Transactions between the Company and related parties are disclosed below:

Operating Creditor as at 31 Debtors as at 31
THEGdhIaT AT 02 Expenses (a) March 2024 (b) March 2024 {c)
usp usp usp
Mikko AM Americas, Inc, 1,086,979 84,395
Mikko AM Europe Ltd., 4,907 366 409,093
Nikke AM Co., Ltd. 2,302,193 439,668
Mikko AN Asia Ltd, 705,026 56,062 52,370
Nikka AM Hong Kong 26,078 1,948
Highwater Limitec 107.407 - -
Total 9,141,049 991,166 52,370
Operating Creditor as at 31 Debtors as at 31
Yearended 31 March 2023 Expenses (a) March 2023 {b) March 2023 (¢}
usD uso usp
Mikko Al Americas, Inc, 1,307,294 413,237
Mikke AM Europe Lta, 5,080,647 416,397
Mikko AM Co., Ltd, 1,994,461 173.046
Nikko AM Asia Ltd. 839,131 66,862
Mikko AM Hong Kong 66,598 2,726
Highwater Limitec 106,123 - -
Total 9,394,304 1,072,268 -

{a} Operating expenses paid to related parties [excluding Highwater Limited) are payable under
investment manapement agreements, or eguivalent, and are for fund management services,
Operating expenses paic to Highwater Limitec relate to director, company secretarial and other
services provided by Highwater Limited to the Company.

{B) The amounts outstanding, in the above table relate to operating expenses, are unsecured and will
be settled in cash. Mo guarantees have been given ar received. No provisions have been made for
doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related parties.

{e} The amounts owed are unsecured and will be settled in cash. Mo guarantees have been giver or
received.

[g] Amounts payable to Nikko Asset Maragement Europe Ltd relating to group tax relief are not
included in the amounts outstanding in the above table but are includec in the statement of
firancial position, note &,

The cirectors are the key management personnel of the Company, Remuneration of directors for the
year ended 31 March 2024 was 579,603 (2023; $20,000],

Nikko Asset Management Co., Ltd is the intermediate parent company of the Company. Nikko Asset
Management Americas, Inc., Nikko Asset Management Evrope Ltd,, Nikko Asset Management Asia Ltd
and Mikko Asset Maragemert Hong Kong are fellow subsiciaries of the Company. Highwater Limited
is controlled by individuals who are Directors of Nikke Al Global Cayman Limited,
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NIKKD AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Mote 11 = Ultimate Holding Company

The Company's immecdiate parent is Nikko AM Global Holdings Limited, a company located in the
United Kinpdam. The Comparmy i a subsidiary undertaking of Sumitome Mitsui Trust Holdings, Ine
which is the ultimate parent company in Japan.

The largest group in which the results of the Company are consalidated is that heaced by Sumitomo

Mitsui Trust Haldings, Ire., 1-1-2 Marunauchi, Chivada-ku, Tokyo, lapan, The consolidated financial
statements of this group are available to the public kttp:/fwww smith_ip/en/,
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Report of independent auditors

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
solely in its capacity as the Trustee of DoubleLine Total Return Fund

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DoubleLine Total Return Fund (the "Series
Trust™), which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of
investments, as of February 29, 2024, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net
assets, and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended, including the related
notes (collectively referred to as the ““financial statements””).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Series Trust as of February 29, 2024, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
= responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are required
to be independent of the Series Trust and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust”s ability
to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to

be issued.
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Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust”s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust®s ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-
related matters that we identified during the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
June 7, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory financial statements of Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited (““the Company””) for
the year ended 31 March 2024 which comprise the statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial
Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement and related notes, including the accounting
policies in note 2. The non-statutory financial statements have been prepared for the reasons set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company s affairs as at 31 March 2024 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (““ISAs (UK)”?) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 12 April 2024.  Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company®s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least
a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory financial statements (““the going concern period’”).

In our evaluation of the directors® conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company s business
model and analysed how those risks might affect the Company s financial resources or ability to continue
operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

we consider that the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the non-
statutory financial statements is appropriate; and

we have not identified and concur with the directors” assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the
Company*s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes

that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are
not a guarantee that the Company will continue in operation.
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Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (““fraud risks””) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:

enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company ”s high-level policies and
procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud; and

reading Board meeting minutes.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our overall knowledge of the control environment, we
perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that management
may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud
risk related to revenue recognition because the calculation of the revenue is non-judgmental and straightforward,
with limited opportunity for manipulation.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We also performed procedures including identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing
the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included all post-closing journals.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and Regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with the directors
and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Company"s regulatory and
legal correspondence and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation or the loss of the Company®s authority to operate. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an effect: certain aspects of company legislation recognising the
financial nature of the Company"s activities and its legal form.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations
to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.
Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence,
an audit will not detect that breach.
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Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed noncompliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing noncompliance or
fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the Directors Report. Our opinion on the
non-statutory financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with
the non-statutory financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified
material misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory financial statements, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor”s
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC s website at
www._frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

202/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company *s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company ”s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.

KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants
15 Canada Square
London E14 5GL

16 July 2024

203/214



28

204/214

US GAAS

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 28

2023



EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

US GAAS

US GAAS

2023 16

205/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Report of independent auditors

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
solely in its capacity as the Trustee of DoubleLine Total Return Fund

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DoubleLine Total Return Fund (the "Series
Trust™), which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of
investments, as of February 28, 2023, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net
assets, and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended, including the related
notes (collectively referred to as the ““financial statements””).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Series Trust as of February 28, 2023, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
= responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are required
to be independent of the Series Trust and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust”s ability
to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to

be issued.
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Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust”s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust®s ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-
related matters that we identified during the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
June 16, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory financial statements of Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited (““the Company””) for
the year ended 31 March 2023 which comprise the statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial
Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement and related notes, including the accounting
policies in note 2. The non-statutory financial statements have been prepared for the reasons set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company s affairs as at 31 March 2023 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (““ISAs (UK)”?) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 9 June 2023. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company®s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least
a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory financial statements (““the going concern period’”).

In our evaluation of the directors® conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company s business
model and analysed how those risks might affect the Company s financial resources or ability to continue
operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

we consider that the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the non-
statutory financial statements is appropriate; and

we have not identified and concur with the directors” assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the
Company*s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes

that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are
not a guarantee that the Company will continue in operation.
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Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (““fraud risks””) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:

enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company ”s high-level policies and
procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud; and

reading Board meeting minutes.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our overall knowledge of the control environment, we
perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that management
may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud
risk related to revenue recognition because the calculation of the revenue is non-judgmental and straightforward,
with limited opportunity for manipulation.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We also performed procedures including identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing
the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included all post-closing journals.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and Regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with the directors
and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Company"s regulatory and
legal correspondence and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation or the loss of the Company®s authority to operate. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an effect: certain aspects of company legislation recognising the
financial nature of the Company"s activities and its legal form.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations
to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.
Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence,
an audit will not detect that breach.
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Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed noncompliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing noncompliance or
fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the Directors Report. Our opinion on the
non-statutory financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with
the non-statutory financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified
material misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory financial statements, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor”s
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC s website at
www._frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
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The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company *s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company ”s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.

Carla Cassidy (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

05 September 2023
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